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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders,

| am delighted to welcome you all at the Eighth (8") Annual General Meeting of Ircon
Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited (IrconDHHL) and present the Audited Statements for the
Financial year 2024-25. | would like to thank each one of you for making it convenient for

joining this meeting.

| would like to place before you, few highlights of Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
(IrconDHHL).

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited (IrconDHHL), a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon
International Limited (IRCON) incorporated on May 11, 2017 as a Special Purpose Vehicle
(SPV) with the main object to execute “Six-laning of Davanagere- Haveri from km 260+000 to
km 338+923 of NH-48 (old NH- 4) in the State of Karnataka, to be executed as Hybrid Annuity
Mode on Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis under NHDP Phase-
V” in accordance with the terms of the Concession Agreement, signed with the National
Highways Authority of India (NHAI) on June 19, 2017.

The concession period of the project comprises of construction period of 912 days (30 months)

commencing from the Appointed Date i.e. January 24, 2018 (as fixed by NHAI) and operation



and maintenance period of 15 years commencing from COD, with the total project bid cost is
1177 Crore plus escalation excluding Operation & Maintenance (O&M) cost. The scope of
work comprises of six-laning of 78.923 Km (total length of Highway) of existing four lane main
carriageway along with construction of 154.654 Km of service road length including major
bridges, culverts, Vehicular underpasses, pedestrian underpasses, flyovers and other allied

works.

The Scheduled date of completion of project was 24.07.2020. NHAI had approved Extension
of Time (EOT) for the Project on account of COVID-19 upto 28.05.2021 and issued Provisional
Completion Certificate (PCC) w.e.f 28.05.2021. Accordingly, from the said date, the project
had entered into operation and maintenance phase for the period of 15 years. The first
08(Eight) annuity payments have been received along with O&M payments and 9th annuity
payment is due on 24.11.2025.

The Operation and Maintenance contract for the completed works was initially awarded by
IrconDHHL to M/s G R Engineers, Mathura (U.P) for 2 years from 07.10.2021 & extension of
the Contract was granted upto 31.01.2024. Subsequently, the work for a further period of
O&M for 2 years has been awarded to IRCON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED vide LOA dated
22.12.2023. Now, IRCON has assumed the responsibility of the O&M work from 01-02-2024

onwards.

Due to hindrances not attributable to the Company, the Authority had descoped the work of
6.88 Km of Main Carriage Way, 49.848 Km of Service Road and Project facilities. On request
for rescoping of descoped work by the Company, NHAI has rescoped the work. A Settlement
Agreement for the execution of balance scope of work has been signed on 25.04.2023 and
the work is to be completed within the execution target of 18 months i.e. upto 31.10.2024.
Thus, completing the entire scope of work as envisaged in the Concession Agreement as per
Original Bid Project Cost. The rescoped works are being executed by the EPC Contractor
(IRCON). However, due to the non-availability of encumbrance-free land arising from various
hindrances, the proposal for an extension of time(EOT) upto 31.12.2025 has been submitted

to the Authority which is currently under review.
Financial Performance

During the year, IrconDHHL achieved Total Income of %16,808.51 Lakhs (including other
income of ¥802.87 Lakhs and profit/(Loss) after tax ¥2376.39 Lakhs for the Financial Year
2024-25.



IrconDHHL has been sanctioned Term Loan facility of ¥502.76 Crore from Punjab National
Bank (PNB) to finance the project, out of which ¥362.97Crore has been availed and ¥275.04
Crore outstanding as on 315t March, 2025.

Compliances and Disclosures

Compliance and Disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and its associated rules there
under are fully being adhered to. CPSE’s constituted as Special Purposed (SPV) are
exempted from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs.

Hence, Corporate Governance guidelines of DPE are not applicable on your Company.
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)

Memorandum of Understanding (MoU): Your Company has requested IRCON to grant it
exemption from compliance of Annual MoU exercise for the financial year 2024-25, in line with
the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) Guidelines issued by Department of Public
Enterprises (DPE) dated 6™ February, 2024 and IRCON vide its letters dated 215t March 2024
has granted exemption to the Company from compliance of Annual MOU exercise for the
financial year 2024-25.

Acknowledgements

I, on behalf of Board of Directors, express my heartfelt thanks for the valuable assistance and
co-operation extended to the Company by Ministry of Road, Transport & Highways (MoRTH),
National Highways Authority of India (NHAI), Ircon International Limited and the Auditors of
the Company. | acknowledge the efforts of the Company’s employees, who are our most
valuable asset. Their dedication, intellect, hard work, and deep sense of value has been the

key to take our company forward.

We look forward to your continued support in our journey ahead.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited

Sd/-

(Yogesh Kumar Misra)
Chairman
DIN: 07654014
Date:29.07.2025

Place: New Delhi
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED

Dear Members,

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 8" Annual Report together with the

Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,2025.

1. BUSINESS OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS: PRESENT STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited (IrconDHHL), a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon
International Limited (IRCON) incorporated on May 11, 2017 as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV)
with the main object to execute “Six-laning of Davanagere- Haveri from km 260+000 to km
338+923 of NH-48 (old NH- 4) in the State of Karnataka, to be executed as Hybrid Annuity Mode
on Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis under NHDP Phase-V” in
accordance with the terms of the Concession Agreement, signed with the National Highways
Authority of India (NHAI) on June 19, 2017.

The concession period of the project comprises of construction period of 912 days (30 months)
commencing from the Appointed Date i.e. January 24, 2018 (as fixed by NHAI) and operation and
maintenance period of 15 years commencing from COD, with the total project bid cost is 1177
Crore plus escalation excluding Operation & Maintenance (O&M) cost. The scope of work
comprises of six-laning of 78.923 Km (total length of Highway) of existing four lane main

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2024-25
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carriageway along with construction of 154.654 Km of service road length including major bridges,

culverts, Vehicular underpasses, pedestrian underpasses, flyovers and other allied works.

The Scheduled date of completion of project was 24.07.2020. NHAI had approved Extension of
Time (EOT) for the Project on account of COVID-19 upto 28.05.2021 and issued Provisional
Completion Certificate (PCC) w.e.f 28.05.2021. Accordingly, from the said date, the project had
entered into operation and maintenance phase for the period of 15 years. The first 08(Eight)
annuity payments have been received along with O&M payments and 9th annuity payment is due
on 24.11.2025.

The Operation and Maintenance contract for the completed works was initially awarded by
IrconDHHL to M/s G R Engineers, Mathura (U.P) for 2 years from 07.10.2021 & extension of the
Contract was granted upto 31.01.2024. Subsequently, the work for a further period of O&M for
2 years has been awarded to IRCON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED vide LOA dated 22.12.2023.
Now, IRCON has assumed the responsibility of the O&M work from 01-02-2024 onwards.

Due to hindrances not attributable to the Company, the Authority had descoped the work of 6.88
Km of Main Carriage Way, 49.848 Km of Service Road and Project facilities. On request for
rescoping of descoped work by the Company, NHAI has rescoped the work. A Settlement
Agreement for the execution of balance scope of work was signed on 25.04.2023 and the work is
to be completed within the execution target of 18 months i.e. upto 31.10.2024. Thus, completing
the entire scope of work as envisaged in the Concession Agreement as per Original Bid Project
Cost. The rescoped works are being executed by the EPC Contractor (IRCON). However, due to
the non-availability of encumbrance-free land arising from various hindrances, the proposal for
an extension of time(EOT) upto 31.12.2025 has been submitted to the Authority which is currently

under review.

2. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

In pursuance of the provisions enumerated under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, the Company, has prepared its annual financial statements for the Financial Year
2024-25 as per Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS).

Financial performance indicators as on 315t March 2025:
(Amount in ¥ In Lakh)

. For the Year For the Year
S.No. | Particulars Ended Ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
1. Equity Share Capital 17, 300.00 17,300.00
2. Other Equity (includes Reserves and Surplus) 9,793.50 7,417.11

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2024-25
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3. Net Worth 27,093.50 24,7171
4. Borrowings (Long term) 29,925.34 32,217.45
5. Total Assets and Liabilities 62,805.00 61,126.57
6. Revenue from Operations 16,005.84 12,619.42
7. Other Income 802.87 577.98
8. Total Income (6) + (7) 16,808.51 13,197.40
9. Profit Before Tax (8)-(11) 3,192.66 3,212.67
10. Profit/(Loss) After Tax 2,376.39 2,387.82
11. Balance of Profit/loss for earlier years 6031.09 3643.27
12. Balance carried forward 8407.42 6031.09

During the year, IrconDHHL achieved Total Income of ¥16,808.51 Lakhs (including other income
of ¥802.87 Lakhs) and profit/(Loss) after tax for the Financial Year 2024-25 of ¥2,376.39 Lakhs.

During the FY 2024-25, CARE Ratings Limited has provided CARE AA-; Stable rating for the long-

term bank facilities of ¥281.32 Crore to your Company.

3. DIVIDEND & APPROPRIATION TO RESERVE:

The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2024-25.

As per the applicability of IND AS, Reserves are reflected as Retained Earnings under the head
‘Other Equity’ in Financial Statements and your Company has a balance of ¥8,407.50 Lakhs in
Retained Earnings as on March 31, 2025.

4. SHARE CAPITAL/ DEMATERIALISATION:

The Authorized Share Capital and the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on 315 March
2025 is ¥217.05 Crore comprising of 21,70,50,000 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each and %173 Crore
comprising of 17,30,00,000 Equity Shares of %10/- each, respectively. During the year under
review, there was no change in the share capital of your Company and Ircon International Limited
(IRCON) continues to hold 100% paid-up share capital of IrconDHHL.

As per Rule 9A of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Amendment Rules,
2019 dated 22.01.2019, the Company being a wholly owned subsidiary (WOS) is not required to

get its securities in dematerialised form.

5. CASH FLOWS FROM THE PROJECT:

The total -Cash Flows from the project activities during the year is ¥3,451.00 Lakh.

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2024-25
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6. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

For the period under review there was no Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies of the

Company.

7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL.:

Board of Directors:

CATEGORY & NAME OF THE DIRECTORS WITH DESIGNATION DURING THE YEAR 2024-
25

During the year under review, the holding company, IRCON International Limited (IRCON), vide
letter no. IRCON/CO/EDF/Duty List/9161 dated 15" April, 2024, nominated Shri Rabindra Kumar
Jaiswal, CGM/Finance/Tax, IRCON, as the Part-time Director (Additional Director) on the Board
of your Company w.e.f April 30, 2024.

Subsequently, IRCON International Limited (IRCON), vide letter no. IRCON/CO/EDF/Duty
List/2024/2 dated 23 December, 2024 Shri Rabindra Kumar Jaiswal ceased to be a Director on
the Board of your Company due to his superannuation with effect from January 31, 2025 and
nominated Shri Santanu Mukherjee, CGM/Finance/ll, IRCON, as the Part-time (Nominee)
Director (Additional Director) on the Board of your Company with effect from January 3, 2025, in
place of Shri Jaiswal, and delegated to him all the powers and responsibilities previously assigned
to Shri Jaiswal.

As per Atrticles of Association of the Company, the Board of the Company is appointed by the
holding company, IRCON. As on 31.03.2025, total no. of Directors is Four (4) including Chairman
and all the directors are nominated by the Holding Company. During the FY 2025, Company’s

management is headed by the following Non-Executive (Nominee) Directors: -

Mr. Yogesh Kumar Misra, Chairman | 07654014 | -

Mr. Masood Ahmad, Director 09008553 | -

Mrs. Aradhana garg, Director 10477168 | -

Mr. Rohit Parmar, Director 08190141 | Cessation w.e.f. 24.04.2024
Mr. Ravindra Kumar Jaisawal, 10610969 | Cessation w.e.f 31.01.2025
Director

Mr. Santanu Mukherjee, Director 10895834 | Appointment w.e.f 03.01.2025

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2024-25
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Shri Santanu Mukherjee, Director (DIN: 10895834), was appointed as Additional Part-time
Directors of the Company w.e.f. 3 January 2025, who holds their office upto the date of ensuing
Annual General Meeting and their appointments are proposed to be regularized at the ensuing
AGM of the Company and has been included in the notice of ensuing AGM.

The Company has received a notice under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from Mr.
Santanu Mukherjee giving their candidature for appointment as Directors, liable to retire by

rotation, in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

During the year, Mr. Rohit Paramar and Mr. Ravindra Kumar Jaiswal, ceased to be Directors of
the Company and the Board placed on record its appreciation for their valuable contribution and

guidance and support given by them during their tenure as Directors of the Company.

Ms. Aradhana Garg, Director (DIN 10477168) retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself
for re-appointment. A resolution seeking shareholders’ approval for her re-appointment along with
other required details forms part of the Notice.

None of the Directors is disqualified from being appointed/re-appointed as Director.

Key Managerial Personnel:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act 2013, the Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP) of the Company during the FY 2025 are as follows:

Mr. Goutam Kumar Mishra

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Mahadeb Mandal

Chief Financial Officer
(Cessation w.e.f 01.07.2025)

Mr. Lalit Mohan

Chief Financial Officer

(appointment w.e.f 01.07.2025)

Mr. Pradeep Kumar Baisoya Company Secretary
(cessation w.e.f 14.02.2025)
Mr. Vikash Awasthi Company Secretary

(appointment w.e.f 16.04.2025)

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2024-25




8. Board Meetings:

9.
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During the FY 2024-25, the Board met Four (4) times on 10.05.2024, 02.08.2024, 29.10.2024,
and 31.01.2025. The interval between the Board Meetings was within the period prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013. The attendance detail of the Board Meetings is as follows:

Date of The Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present
10.05.2024 4 4
02.08.2024 4 4
29.10.2024 4 4
31.01.2025 5 5

The table below shows attendance of the Board members at the Board Meetings held during
the FY 2024-25 and their attendance in the last Annual General Meeting (AGM):

< | = < 0

N | N N I

o o o o

N | N N ]

B | o =) -

S [ < “ S

o N (<2} -~

- o N ™
Shri Yogesh Kumar Misra | v v v v v 4 100
Shri Masood Ahmad v v v v v 4 100
Shri Rabindra Kumar v v v v 4 4 100
Jaiswal (up to 31.01.2025)
Shri Santanu Mukherjee NA | NA | NA v NA 1 100
(from 03.01.2025)
Smt Aradhana Garg v v v v 4 4 100

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS & BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

GUIDELINES ISSUED BY DPE:

In terms of notification dated July 5, 2017 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) inter-

alia amending rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014,

an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary is exempted from the requirement of

appointing Independent Directors on its Board and requirement of constituting of the Board

Committees viz. Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC).
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IrconDHHL, an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary company of IRCON, is,
therefore, not required to appoint any Independent Director on its Board and the declaration by
the Independent Directors is not applicable on the Company.

Further, in terms of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE)'s OM dated July 8-10, 2014 read with
OM dated July 11, 2019, CPSE’s constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) are exempted
from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs. Hence,

Corporate Governance guidelines of DPE are not applicable on IrconDHHL.

10. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

The Board of Directors of the Company confirms:

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended
318t March 2025, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b) that such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgment and
estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year March 31, 2025 and of
the Profit & Loss of the Company for that period ended on that date;

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

11. DIRECTORS’ OBSERVATION AND COMMENTS FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(EXPLANATION FOR ANY COMMENTS MADE BY AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORT:

The Notes to Accounts forming part of the financial statements are self-explanatory and need no
further explanation.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditors’ Report which require any

clarification/explanation.

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2024-25
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12. AUDITORS:

Statutory Auditor:

M/s G A C S & Associates, Chartered Accountants, had been appointed as Statutory Auditors,
for the Financial year 2024-25 vide CAG letter No. CA. V/COY/ Central Government, IDHHL(1)333
dated 21.09.2024. They have confirmed by way of a written consent and certificate as required
under Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Cost Auditor:

The Board of Directors had re-appointed M/s. R.M Bansal Co., Cost Accountant, as Cost Auditor
of the Company for the FY 2024-25 for conducting the audit of cost records maintained by the

Company as per the applicable Rules / Guidance Note, etc.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Act, read with the Companies (Cost

Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company has maintained cost accounts and records.

Secretarial Auditor:

The Board of Directors had appointed M/s. A.K Rastogi & Associates, Company Secretary, as
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the FY 2024-25.

Internal Auditor:

The Board of Directors had appointed M/s Singhal Sunil & Associates, Chartered Accountants,

as Internal Auditors for the FY 2024-25, to conduct the Internal Audit of the Company.

13. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

There are no transactions of loans, guarantees and investments as covered under the provisions

of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year under review.

14. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

During the year, the related party transactions with the holding company, IRCON were in the
ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and approved in terms of the Companies
Act 2013. The details of the related party transactions in form AOC-2 are enclosed to this report

as Annexure-1.

15. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY AFTER THE CLOSURE OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2024-25
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No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company had
occurred in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.

16. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

Every company having Net Worth of ¥500 crore or more or Turnover of 1000 crore or more or
Net Profit of %5 crore or more during the immediately preceding FY is required to spend in every
FY, at least 2% of average net profits of the company made during the three immediately

preceding FY in pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy.

Since, the net profit of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 was ¥32.12
Crore which exceeds the above mentioned threshold limit, therefore, the provisions of CSR under
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 was applicable on the Company from FY 2024-25.

During the period under review, the CSR budget of the Company was Rs.50.14 Lakhs. Therefore,
the requirement for constitution of CSR Committee pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies

Act, 2013 was applicable to the Company.

During the year, CSR fund was allocated under following CSR activities:

S. Name of the | Whether the project/activity was | Sector Location Amount
No. project/activity taken up the Company directly or of the | spent in the
through any agencyl/entity? If project/Sta | current
yes, name of agency/entity te finance al
year (Rs. in
lakh)
1.| Comprehensive Health | Bisnouli Sarvodya Gramodya Sewa | Health & | Nuh, 35.60 Lakh
outreach programme for | Sansthan Nutrition | Haryana

screening & eradication
of the anaemia in Dist.
Nuh, Haryana

2. | Distribution of 6 Nos. of | Direct Health & | Haveri, 14.55 Lakh
Digital Video Colposcope Nutrition | Karnataka
Machine

The Annual report on CSR activities required under the Companies (Corporate Social

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is set out as Annexure-2 forming part of this report.

17. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out hereunder:

A. Conservation of enerqgy: -

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2024-25
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Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of

particulars is not applicable to the Company.

B. Technology absorption: -

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of

particulars is not applicable to the Company.

C. Foreign exchange earnings and Outqo: -

There was no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Foreign Exchange Outgo during the year
2024-25.

18. RISK MANAGEMENT:

In the opinion of the Board, presently the Company does not foresee any major threat/risk to the

business of the Company.

19. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

As per Notification dated June 5, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government
Companies are exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies

Act, 2013 and corresponding rules under Chapter XIII.

IrconDHHL being a government company is not required to disclose information on the
remuneration of employees falling under the criteria prescribed under rule 5(2) of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), as a part of the Directors' Report.

20. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year 2024-25.

21. PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

During the year under review, your Company has not invited any deposits from its members
pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

22. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate system of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. All the transactions were properly authorized, recorded and reported to the
Management. The Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly

maintaining the books of account and reporting in the financial statements. Your Company

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2024-25
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continues to ensure proper and adequate systems and procedures commensurate with its size

and nature of its business.

23. SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS
IN FUTURE

No order has passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status

of the Company and its operations in future during the FY 2024-25.

24, COMPLIANCE OF MSME GUIDELINES FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF PURCHASE
PREFERENCE POLICY

In exercise of powers conferred by section 9 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006, the Central Government issued instructions that all companies registered
under the Companies Act, 2013 with a turnover of more than ¥250 Crore and all CPSEs shall be
required to get themselves on-boarded on the Trade Receivables Discounting System (TReDS)
platform, set up as per the notification of the Reserve Bank of India. The Registrar of Companies
(RoC) in each State shall be the competent authority to monitor the compliance of such
instructions and also the Department of Public Enterprises, Government of India shall be the
competent authority to monitor the compliance of such instructions by the CPSEs. In compliance
with the above instruction, the Company has boarded on the TReDS platform w.e.f. 13.12.2019,
to facilitate the financing of trade receivables of MSEs by discounting of their receivables and

realisation of their payment before the due date.

25.DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company, being a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, ‘Policy for Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace’ of IRCON (POSH Policy) is applicable on the
Company and the Internal Complaints Committee of IRCON will deal with all the complaint, if any,
under POSH Act.

During the period under review, there was no complaint pending at the beginning nor any

complaint relating to sexual harassment was reported pursuant Section 22 of The Sexual

Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
The number of sexual harassment complaints received during the year - 0
The number of such complaints disposed off during the year -0
The number of cases pending for more than ninety days -0

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2024-25
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26. STATEMENT ON MATERNITY BENEFIT COMPLIANCE
The Company is complying with the provisions relating to the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

27.VIGIL MECHANISM:

The Company has established a mechanism for directors and employees to report concerns
about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud, or violation of the Code. It also provides for
adequate safeguards against the victimization of employees who avail the mechanism. Being a
wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, for employees nominated and deputed from IRCON, the
Whistle Blower Policy of IRCON is applicable, which is available on the website at,

https://www.ircon.org/images/file/cosecy/Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf

For other persons in employment of the Company, complaint / reporting under Vigil Mechanism
can be addressed to:

Mr. Masood Ahmad, Director

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited (IrconDHHL)

Address: Ircon International Limited,

C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi- 110017

Phone No.: +919560595062

Email id: masood.ahmad@ircon.org

28. RIGHT TO INFORMATION:

No application under Right to Information Act, 2005 has been received by the company during
the FY 2024-25, however, RTI application transferred from DPE was duly replied during the FY
2024-25.

29. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD MEMBERS:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has, vide its notification dated 5th June 2015, notified the exemptions
to Government Companies from certain provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 which inter-alia
provides that Section 134(3)(p) regarding a statement indicating the manner of formal annual
evaluation of Board, shall not apply to Government Companies in case the Directors are
evaluated by the Ministry which is administratively in charge of the Company as per its evaluation
methodology.

Further, the aforesaid circular issued by the MCA has also exempted that sub-sections (2), (3) &
(4) of Sec. 178 regarding the appointment, performance evaluation and remuneration shall not

apply to Directors of Government Companies.

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2024-25
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Being a government company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited, all
part-time Directors are nominated by the holding company, IRCON. The evaluation of these
nominated directors is done by the holding company as per pre-defined criteria in line with the

guidelines of the Government of India.

30. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year, the Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued

by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

31. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The “Secretarial Audit Report” from the secretarial auditor in Form MR-3 as required under section
204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and is placed as Annexure-3.

32. STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT AND C&AG COMMENTS

The reports of the Statutory Auditors on the Financial Statements for financial year 2024-25 with
Nil observation are attached separately as part of the Annual Report. The report is self-
explanatory and does not require any further comments by the Board.

Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) has also conducted supplementary audit of the
financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2025 and given NIL comments vide its letter
dated 07" July, 2025.

33. APPLICATION/PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY & BANKRUPTCY CODE,
2016

There are no proceeding initiated/ pending against the Company under the Insolvency &

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the Company.

34. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MoU):

Pursuant to the provision of Consolidated Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) Guidelines
dated 10" March, 2023 of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Companies, that are
subsidiary company of a CPSE, will sign Annual MoU with its holding company and holding
company is free to take a decision regarding exemption from MoU for its subsidiary companies
and process of exemption shall ordinarily be completed by 315t of March of the base year.

In line with the MoU Guidelines of DPE, IRCON vide its letters dated 215t March, 2024 has granted

exemption to the Company from entering into MoU for the financial year 2024-25.

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2024-25
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Sd/-
(Yogesh Kumar Misra)
Chairman
DIN: 07654014
Date:29.07.2025
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ANNEXURE - 1

FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso
thereto for the period ending in 31.03.2025

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis: as follows

Salient terms of the Date(s) of
Duration of the | Contracts or Amount
Nature of contracts approval .
Sr. contracts or | Arrangements or paid as
or arrangements or . by the
No. : arrangements or | Transactions . advances,
transactions . . . Board, if .
transactions including the value, any: if any:
if any y:
Date: EPC
Agreement
EPC Agreement |\ 104.01.2018
(For Appointing Ircon
International Limited Duration:
as EPC Contractor ; . August 10,
- Completion period . I
for execution of |. Consideration: 2021,
. «ai., |iS 30 months from
1 project works of “Six Appointed date or Rs.916.93 February NIL
: Laning of . Crore plus GST| 20,2018 &
. | handing over of o
Davanagere Haveri land b the @12%. November
from km 260+000 to | S°= ¥ TP 9, 2017
km 338+923 of NH- pany
. IRCON whichever
48(0ld NH-4 ) in the |.
” is later. Further,
state of Karnataka
extended up to
31.10.2024.
Estimated executed on 5 April
Lease Agreement duration: 2023 for the period
2 (To tak'e on Iease 2 years 01.04.2023 to NA NIL
the Office Premises (1.04.2023 to 31.03.2025 at
of IRCON) 31' 03' 2025) monthly rent of Rs.
T 23,359/-.plus GST
For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Sd/-
(Yogesh Kumar Misra)
Date: 29.07.2025 Chairman
Place: New Delhi DIN: 07654014

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2024-25

22



Y//H1/117)

ANNEXURE - 2
Annual Report on CSR & Sustainability

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is a company’s commitment to address social,
ethical and environmental concerns in which it operates and contribute to develop a
sustainable society through sustainability initiatives by conducting business in a manner
that is beneficial to both, business and society.

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited (IrconDHHL) is committed to undertake CSR
activities in accordance with provision of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 (“CSR Rules”), as
amended time to time and DPE Guidelines, 2014 (hereinafter collectively referred to as
“CSR laws”), with the former taking precedence over the later in case of any conflict.

The Company shall allocate the budget for CSR activities. The minimum budgeted amount
for a financial year shall be 2% of the average net profit (as defined under CSR Rules) of
three immediate preceding financial years. The Company may allocate more fund for the
CSR activities in any financial year than the amount prescribed under the Act.

The Company shall undertake CSR activities as per Schedule VII of the Act through
following three modes of implementation:

(a) Implementation by the Company itself;
(b) Implementation through eligible implementing agencies as prescribed in CSR Rules;

(c) Implementation in collaboration with one or more companies as prescribed in CSR
Rules.

If any amount spent in excess of requirement as per sub-section (5) of section 135, such
excess amount may be set off against the requirement to spend under sub-section (5) of
section 135 upto immediate succeeding three financial years subject to the conditions that:

i) the excess amount available for set off shall not include the surplus arising out of the
CSR activities, if any.

ii) the Board shall pass a resolution to that effect.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Member No. of Meeting of CSR | No. of Meeting of CSR
Committee held during the | Committee attended during
year* the year*

Mr. Masood Ahmad, | NA NA

Chairman

Mr. Santanu | NA NA

Mukherjee, Member

*NA denotes Not Applicable as no CSR Committee meeting was held during the FY 2024-25.

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR
projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.: N.A.

4, Provide the execute summary along with web-link(s) of Impact assessment of CSR
projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 if applicable.:

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2024-25
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Not applicable for this financial year. Further, none of the Completed CSR activities

taken up during FY 2024-25 were Rs.1 crore or above for which impact assessment
is required.

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: Rs.2506.92

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company asper section 135(5): Rs.50.14
Lakhs

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years: Nil

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-@d)]: Rs.50.14 Lakhs

6.

(in Lakhs)
(a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Projects and other Rs.50.15
than Ongoing Projects).
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : Nil
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable. : Nil
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: Rs.50.15

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
(in Lakhs)
Total Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Amount

Spent for the | Total Amount | Amount transerred to any fund

Financial |transferred to Unspent | specified under Schedule VIl as per
Year (in Rs.) | CSR Account as per sub- | second proviso to sub-section (5) of
section (6) of section |section 135.

135.
Amount. [Date of transfer. Name of the Fund [Amount Date of
. transfer.
50.15 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
(f) Excess amount for set off, if any
SI. No. | Particular Amount (Rs.
in Lakhs)
0] Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 50.14
section 135(5)
(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 50.15
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 0.01
(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or 0.00
activities of the previous financial years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years 0.01
[(ii)-(iv)]
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7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three
Financial Years:
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sl. | Preceding Amount Balance | Amount Amount Amount Defi
No | Financial | transferred | Amount | Spentin | transferred to | remaining | cien
Year(s) to Unspent in the a Fund as to be cy,
CSR Unspent | Financial specified spent in if
Account CSR Year (in under succeedin | any
under sub- | Account Rs.) Schedule VIl | g Financial
section (6) under as per Years (in
of section sub- second Rs.)
135 (in section proviso to
Rs.) (6) of sub-section
section (5) of section
135 (in 135, if any
Rs.) Amoun | Dat
t(in e of
Rs.) Tran
sfer
1 2021-22
2022-23 Nil
3 2023-24
Nil
8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social

Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

7\ Yes

\__/

SR

If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/acquired:- No. of assets has created.

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: N.A.

SI.No |Short particulars| Pincode | Date of| Amount Details of entity/ Authority/
of the property or| of the |creatio| of CSR | beneficiary of the registered owner
asset(s) property n amount
[including or spent
complete asset(s)
address and
location of the
property]
(1 (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)
CSR Name Registered
Registration address

Number, if
applicable

Not Applicable
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9.  Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per section 135(5).: Not Applicable

Director and Chairman of the CSR
Committee

Director and Chairman of the Board

Sd/-
Mr. Masood Ahmad
(DIN: 09008553)

Sd/-
Mr. Yogesh Kumar Misra
(DIN: 07654014)

Date:29.07.2025

Place: New Delhi
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GHAZIABAD-201002 (U.P.)
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anilrastogi3609@email.com

A.K. RASTOGI &ASSOCIATES anil railn;lil‘) a@rediffmail.com
: www.akrastogiassociates.

CompanySecretarios 1stoglassociates. in/

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315 MARCH, 2025
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014]

To,

The Members,

IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
C-4, District Centre, Saket,

New Delhi- 110017

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate Practices by IRCON
DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED (CIN:
U45500DL2017GOI1317401) hereinafter called the ‘Company’ for the financial
year ended 31% March 2025. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms
and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our
opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31st March, 2025 (Audit period) complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and Returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31
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March 2025 according to the provisions of?

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules
made thereunder; - NOT APPLICABLE

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder; - NOT APPLICABLE

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; - NOT APPLICABLE

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) are not applicable to the
company as the shares of the company are not listed with stock exchanges
during audit period.

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations,2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Shares based Employee Benefits
and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021; and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018;

(i) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company Viz.

1. The Building and Other Construction Workers® Welfare Cess Act, 1996 and
rules mad thereunder.

2. The Arbitration and Conciliation Act ,1996

3. The Disaster Management Act,2005

The Compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and
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indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed in this audit since the same have been
subject to review by the statutory auditor and the other designated
professionals.

We further report that Compliances/ processes/ systems under other specific
applicable laws (as applicable to the industry) are being relied on the basis of
periodical certificate under internal compliance system submitted to the Board
of Directors of the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the
following;:

(i) Secretarial Standards as amended from time to time issued by The
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock
Exchange(s) and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Requirements), 2015 (Not applicable to the company during Audit
period)

(i) DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSE.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions
of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above
subject to the following observations:

1. The Company, being a Government Company under Section 2(45) of the
Companies Act, 2013 as it is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International
Limited is exempted from the requirement of having Independent Directors as
per Notification No. GSR 839(E) dated 5™ July 2017 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, hence the Company is not required to have Independent
Directors on its Board.

2. The Company, being a Government Company under Section 2(45) of the
Companies Act, 2013, as it is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International
Limited is exempted from the requirement of having Independent Directors,
therefore is also exempted from constitution of the Board Committees viz. Audit
Committee and Nomination & Remuneration as per Section 177(1), 178(1) of the
Companies Act 2013.

We further report that:
The Board of Directors of the Company was duly constituted with Non-Executive
Directors as nominated by the Promoter Company viz. IRCON INTERNATIONAL
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LIMITED, as per the Articles of Association of the Company. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Generally, adequate notices were given to all the directors to schedule the Board
Meetings, Agenda and detailed Notes on Agenda were sent at least seven days in
advance and in some cases at shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the Agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the
company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the company had no major events/
actions having a major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above
referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

For A.K. Rastogi & Associates
Company Secretaries
ICSI Unique code No P2025UP104900

Peer Review Certificate No. r3322/202.‘5
Place: Ghaziabad "

Date: 23.07.2025

od - W
A

(Sakshi Garg)
PARTNER

Mem. No.: A69597
COP No.: 26728

UDIN: A069597G000843271

Note: This report to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure
A” and forms an integral part of this report.
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“Annexure A”

To,
The Members,

IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
C-4, District Centre, Saket,
New Delhi- 110017

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our Audit.
We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the company and our report is not covering
observations/comments/weaknesses already pointed out by the other Auditors.
Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.
The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis and to give our opinion whether
Company has proper Board-processes and Compliance-mechanism in place or not.
. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the company.
For A.K. Rastogi & Associates
Company Secretaries
ICSI Unique code No P2025UP104900
Peer Review Certificate No. 3322/2023
Place: Ghaziabad \

a I1 .' L b
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G A C S & ASSQCiateS 124, SF, Defence Enclave,

Chartered Accountants Vikas Marg,
New Delhi 110092
Mobile: 9313006657
Phone: 8368750617
Email: shashifca@gmail.com

REVISED INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVER! HIGHWAY LIMITED,
C — 4, District Centre,

Saket, New Delhi {IN) — 110 017

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statement

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of IRCON DAVANAGERE
HAVER| HIGHWAY LIMITED (“the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of
Cash Flows for the period then ended and Notes to the Financial Statements including a
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after
referred to as “Standalone Financial Statements”.

This report, revised consequent upon gbservation of comptroller of Auditor General of India
during the course of audit u/s 139(5) of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) for the year ended
31st March 2025, supersedes our earlier report dated 2nd May 2025 u/s 143 of Companies
Act 2013

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015, as amended, and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2025, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the period ended on the date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the Standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accardance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the independence requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,
- .2013 and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
]n;Fccordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the
giydit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
pinion on the financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

We have determined the matter(s) described below to be the key audit matters to be

communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the matter

Revenue Recognition in terms of Ind AS

115 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

The Company recognizes revenue for a
performance obligation satisfied over time
after estimating its progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance abligation. The
recognition of revenue requires assessments
and judgments to be made on changes in work

scope (de-scoping, re-scoping), claims
{(compensation, rebates etc.) and other
payments to the extent performance

obligation is satisfied. The company measures
the performance abligation by applying input
method.

During order  fulfillment, contractual
obligations may need to be reassessed. In
addition, change orders or cancelations have
to be considered. As a result, total estimated
project costs may exceed total contract
revenues and therefore require immediate
recognition of the expected loss,

Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise
judgement, taking into consideration all of the
relevant facts and circumstances when
applying each step of the model to contracts
with their customers.

Further, the explanation why we consider this
as a Key Audit Matter is as follows:

The application of the revenue accounting
standard involves certain key judgements
relating to  identification of distinct
performance obligations, determination

wof transaction price of the identified
‘plrformance obligations, the appropriateness

Qur audit procedures included
considering the appropriateness of the
Company’s revenue recognition
accounting  policies and  assessing
compliance with the policies in terms of
the applicable accounting standards.

We performed following substantive
procedures:

e Read, analyzed and identified the
distinct performance obligations in the
contract.

= Compared the performance obligations
with that identified and recorded by the
Company.

¢ Checked whether the performance
obligation is being satisfied over the
period of time or at a point in time.

¢ Performed analytical procedures
for reasonabhleness of revenues
disclosed.
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1

of the basis used to

measure revenue recognized at a point in time
or over time. Additionally, revenue accounting
standard contains disclosures which involves
collation of information in

respect of disaggregated revenue and periods
over which the remaining performance
obligations will be satisfied subsequent to the
balance sheet date.

For details refer Note 2.2.4, 32 to the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report
but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Qur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. Since we have not been provided with the copy of the
Board Report, we are unable to comment on thaot.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 [“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended from time ta time.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
contrals, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

' Qrerror.
. e
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so. The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and ta issue an
auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasanably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section143{3){i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up te the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We

_.consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
7dudit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any
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identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on cur
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse cansequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.

As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Qrder, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary forthe purposesof our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have heen kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), and the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Change
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. Inouropinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

€. Being a government company, provision of section 164(2) of the Act are not
applicable pursuant to the notification No. G.5.R.463(E) dated 5th June 2015, issued
by the Central Government of India.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financiai controls over financial
reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

g. Being a government company, provision of section 197 of the Act are not applicable
vide notification no. GSR 463 (£} dated 5th June 2015, issued by the Central
Government of India.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as
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amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

iv.

vi.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a
material impact an its financial position.

Based on the assessment made by the Company, there are no material
foreseeable losses on long-term contracts that may require any provisioning.
The Company did not have any derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shail, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or pravide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds {which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entity {“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, iend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i} of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

. The Company has not proposed, declared or paid any final or interim dividend

during the period and until the date of this report, therefore, the reporting
under clause is not applicable.

Based on our examination, which include test checks, the company has used
an accounting software (SAP) for maintaining its books of accounts for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit
we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tempered with
and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.
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3. Asrequired by Section 143(5) of the Act and as per directions issued by Comptroller
and Auditor General of India, we report that:

S.No

Directions

Auditor’s Replies

1.

Whether the company has system in
place to process all the accounting
transactions through IT system? If yes,
the implications of processing of
accounting transactions outside IT
system on the Integrity of the accounts
along with the financial implications, if
any, may be stated.

Company is using SAP system to
process all the accounting
transactions. As per the information
and explanation provided to us no
accounting transactions have been
processed outside the 1T System
except income billing for which no
financial implication were observed.

Whether there is any restructuring of
an existing loan or cases of
waiver/write off of debts / loans /
interest etc. made by a lender to the
company due to the company's
inability to repay the loan? If yes, the
financial impact may be stated.
Whether such cases are properly
accounted for? {In case, lender is a
Government company, then this
direction is also applicable for
statutory auditor of lender company).

No; Company is having no case of any
restructuring of an existing loan or
cases of waiver/write off of
debts/loans/interest etc. made by a
lender to the company due to the
company's inability to repay the loan,

Whether funds {(grants/subsidy etc.)
received/receivable  for  specific
schemes from Central/State
Government or its agencies were
properly accounted for/utilized as per
its term and conditions? List the cases
of deviation

According to the information and
explanation given to us and as per
our examination of records, no funds
have been received/receivable for
any specific scheme from
Central/State Government or its
agencies during the period from 1%
April 2024 to 31% March 2025,

ForGACS & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN:

193N

ANl -

( CA. SHASHI GURTA)
PARTNER

M. No. : 084110

UDIN
Place
Date

: New Delthi

: June 13, 2025
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ANNEXURE “A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ sectionof our
report to the Members of ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i In respect of Company's Property, Plant & Equipment;

(a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant & Equipment.

(b) The company is not having any intangible assets; hence this clause is not applicable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Property, Plant & Equipment have
been physically verified by the management in a phased manner at reasonable intervals, and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. Further, there is a regular program of
verification, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature
of its business

(d) The company does not own any immovable properties during the period of audit.

(e) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right of use of assets) or
intangible asset of both during the financial year;

(f) According to information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated or pending
against company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder during the year,

i, In respect of Inventories:

The Company does not have any inventory and has no working capital limits in excess of Rs 5 Crores
in aggregate at any points of time during the period, from banks or financial institutions on the basis
of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable.

i, According to information and explanations given to us by the management and records produced
before us, the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security, granted
any loan or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships, and any other parties covered in the register required under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013, during the period. Hence reporting under Paragraph 3(iii) of the order is
not applicable to the Company.

iv. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us by the management and
records produced before us, the Company has not granted loans or provided any guarantees or given
any security or made any investment to which the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act 2013 are attracted. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv} of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

V. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us by the management and
records produced before us, the Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed
to be deposits. Hence,reporting under clause 3{v) of the Order is not applicable.

Vi, The Company has maintained cost records as required under section 148(1) of the Companies Act,
2013. However, we are neither required to carry out, nor have carried out any detailed examination
of such accounts and records.

vil, In respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Income
Tax, goods and service Tax, Sales tax ,service tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax,
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viii.

Xi.

to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, there are no undisputed statutory dues,
other than as stated below, which were outstanding as on 31.03.2025 for a period of more than
six months from the date the same become payable.

(b) Details of Statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on
31.03.2025 on account of dispute are given below:

S.No | Name of the Nature of the Amount (in Period to which | Forum where
Statue Dues lacs) the amounts Dispute is
related FY pending
1 Income Tax Income Tax 225.62 2021-22 CIT(A)
2 Income Tax Income Tax 121.58 2022-23 CIT(A)

According to the information and explanation given to us, and as per examination of records of the
Company, in our opinion, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that
have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the period in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 {43 of 1961},

In respect of loans and borrowings taken by the Company:

(a) Based on our review of accounts and as per information provided, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of loans or other borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon during the year
under audit.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has applied term loan for
the purpose for which loans were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, funds raised on short- term basis, have
not been used during the period for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not taken any funds

from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates
or joint ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not raised loans during
the year on the pledge of securities held in subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and asscciate companies
hence reporting on clause 3(ix){f) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised maneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the period and hence reporting under clause 3(x) (a) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) During the period, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause
3(x}(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a)} According to information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material
fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period.

1 (B)No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-
~/..1A|as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
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Xil.

xiii.

Xiv,

XV,

xvi,

xvii.

Xviii,

XiX.

Government, during the period and upto the date of this report.

(c) No whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the period (and upte the date of
this report), while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

Accarding to the information and explanation given to us, and based on our examination of records
of the Company, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size
and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the period under audit, issued to the Company
during the period and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures,

According to the information and explanation given to us, and based on our examination of records of
the Company, during the period the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
Directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) {a), (b) and {c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) In our opinian, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016} and accordingly reporting under clause
3{xvi} {d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the period covered by our audit and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the period.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and cur
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as
to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.
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compliance with second proviso to sub section (5) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly
reporting under clause 3(xx)( a) of the order is not applicable for the period.

(b) There is no amount remaining unspent under sub- section (5} of section 135 of the Companies Act,
pursuant to ongoing project for the period. Accordingly reporting under clause 3{xx}{ b) of the
order is not applicable for the period.

wi.  The Company does not have investment in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and therefore,
company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements. Accordingly reperting under
clause 3{xxi) of the order is not applicable.

ForG ACS & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERE[ ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 005193N

( CA. SHASHI GW |

PARTNER

M. No. : 084110
UDIN

Place : New Delhi
Date : June 13, 2025
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Annexure B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited for the period ended 31* March, 2025

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IRCON DAVANAGERE
HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31st 2025 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on, “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI)”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s palicies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Contrels Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

pany's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
ble assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
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statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2025, “based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India”.

For GACS & ASSOCIATES
CHARTEREDP ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 005183N

/
{ ca. SH%L;' :

M. No. : 084110
UDIN :
Place : New Delhi

Date : June 13, 2025
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IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL2017G0I317401

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

. As at As at
Rty e 31t March, 2025 31st March, 2024
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 89.79 103.23
(b) Deferred Tax Assels (net) 4 = 2
{c) Financial Assets 5
(i) Loans 5.1 083 1.23
(ii) Other Financial Assets 5.2 39,799.10 41,351.72
(d) Other Non-Current Assets = =
Total Non-Current Assets 39,889.72 41,456.18
Current assets
(a) Financial Assets 6
(i) Trade receivables 6.1 2,328.99 223441
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalenis 6.2 1,368.45 418160
(iii) Bank Balances other than (i) above 6.3 12,277.00 5,376.00
(iv) Loans 6.4 0.65 0.40
{v) Other Financial Assels 6.5 547648 5,238.87
(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) 7 273.26 22472
{c) Other Current Assets 8 1,190.45 241439
Total Current Assets 2291528 19,670.39
TOTAL ASSETS 62,805.00 61,126.57
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 9 17,300.00 17,300.00
{b) Other Equity 10 9,793.50 7417.11
Total Equity 27,093.50 24,717.11
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 111 29,925.34 3221745
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 1.2 - 3206
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 4 249 237
Total Non-Current Liabilities 29.927.83 32,251.88
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities 12
(i} Borrowings 121 2,291.91 2,512.00
(i) Trade Payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 12.2 2.38 2051
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than of micro enterprises and 127 3.046.62 863 50
small enterprises
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 12.3 341.06 368.54
(b) Other Current Liabilities 13 101.70 392.94
(c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 14 = =
Total Current Liabilities 5,783.67 4,157.58
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 62,805.00 61,126.57
Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements. 11040

As per our report of even date
For G A C S & Associates

ICA| Firn Relgistration Na. : 005193N
Kgi"iW A
,
CAshastiGupta |

Partner H
ICAl Mambership No. - 084110 \!

Place: New Delhi
Date:02.05.2025

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors
Ireen Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited

%4*“ ¥
Santanu Mukh

Director
{DIN=- 10895834) .

~ Vikas Awasthi
Company Secretary
45

Goutam Kumar Mishra
Chief Executive Officer

deb Mandal
Chief Financial Officer




IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL2017GOI317401

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupses Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Pt SN R
Revenue :
Revenue from operations 1.1 16,005.64 12,610.42
Other come 15.2 802.87 577.98
Total income (A) 16,808.51 13,197.40
Expenses
Project Expenses 16 10,491.86 6,731.38
Employee bengfits expenses 17 94.82 84.13
Finance Cosls 18 2,921.60 3,109.61
Deprediation and amortization expenses 3 13.67 15.91
Other expenses 18 87.90 43.50
Total expenses (8) 13,615.85 9,984.73
Profit/{Loss) before tax (A-B) 3,192.66 3,212.67
Tax expenses 4
Current tax 816.15 821.40
Tax adjustment of earlier years = 2.83
Deferred tax (net) 0.12 0.62
816.27 824.85
Profit/(Loss) for the year 2,376.38 2,387.82
Other comprehensive incomel{loss)
A) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss N 3
Income tax relating to ltems that will nat be reclassified to profit or loss =
B) ltems that will be reclassffied to profit or loss - 2
Income tax relating to ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss , )
Other comprehensive incomel(loss) for the year (ne of fax) - 5
Total Comprehensive incomel(loss) for the year 2,376.39 2,387.82
Earnings per equity share (Face Value Per Equity Share Rs. 10) 24
Basic (In Rs.) 137 138
Diluted (In Rs.} 137 138
Face Value per Equity Share (In Rs) 10.00 10.00
Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 11040
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IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL2017GOI317401

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31st March 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

1. Figures in brackets indicate cash oufflow.

Forthe year ended | Forthe year ended
1 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Particulars
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 3,192.66 3,212.67
Adjustments for:
Depreciation/Amortization 13.67 15.91
Interest Income (6,059.16) {6,319.79)
Interest Expenses and Other Finance Cost 2,927 60 3,109.81
Proiit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments = (2.56)
Bad Debis = £
Tax for the Earlier Years - =
Operating profit before working capital changes 74.77 16.04
Movements in working capital:
Increasel/(decrease) in other non-current liability - -
Increase/{decrease) in other current financial liabiliies (34.12) (1,605.20)
Increase/{decrease) in Trade Payables 2,164.91 828.70
Increase/{decrease) in other non-current financial liabilifies (32.06) 1.38
Increase/(decrease) in other current liability (291.24) 372.20
Increase/(decreasa) in non-current provisions - -
Increase/(decrease) in current provisions - -
Decreasel(increase) in trade receivables (94.58) 1,502.60
Decreasel(increase) in inventories = ~
Decrease / {Increase) in Loans & Other Cumrent Financial Assets (248.58) (564.38)
Decrease / (Increase) in Non Current Financial Assets 1,552.63 453.73
Decreasel(increase) in Current tax Asset (Net) = £
Decreasel(increase) in other Non-cument assets = =
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Current Assets 1,223.94 1,253.56
Cash Generated from Operation 4,315.69 2,258.63
Less : Income Tax Paid (864.69) (1,193.24)
|Net cash flow fromi{used in) operating activities (A} 3,451.00 1,065.39
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of PPE including CWIP (0.23) {9.10)
Sale of PPE - 8.50
Interest Income 6,070.25 6,456.91
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents (6,901.00) 848.00
Net cash flow from/(used in] investing activities (B) (830.98) 7,304.31
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of Loan to PNB {2,512.20) {2,512.16)
Proceeds from fresh issue of share capital + =
Interest Expenses and Other Finance Cost (2,920.97) (3,109.81)
Loan From Ircon International Limited as quasi capital = u
Net cash flow from/{used in) in financing activities (C) (5,433.17) {5,621.97)
Net increasel{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) (2,8613.15) 2,747.73
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,181.60 1.433.87
Closing cash and cash equivalents 1,368.45 4,181.60
Notes:

2. The Statement of Cash flows has been prepared under the Indirect method set out in Ind AS-7 'Statement of Cash FHow' nofified under the Companies (Indian

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

3. Recongiliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents and Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents included in the above Statement of Cash Flows:

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Components of cash and cash equivalents®
- Cash on hand - -
- With banks in current account 1,018.45 14.60
- Deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months 350.00 4,167.00
Total cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet and Statement of Cash Flows 1,368.45 4,181.60

*Eammarked Fund
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4. Reconciliation of Liabilities arising from financing activities - Principal

Particul As at As at
SEtinare 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Loan from Holding Loan from Bank Loan from Holding Loan from Bank
Opening balances 4,713.00 30,016.45 4713.00 32 528 61
Movement during the year:
- Repayments of Borowings - (2,512.20) : (2,512.16)
- Borrowing taken during the year 2 5 - S
Closing balances 4713.00 27,504.25 4,713.00 30,016.45
Reconciliation of Liabilities arising from financing activities - Interest
3 As at As at

fardeuiars 31st March, 2025 31t March, 2024

Interest on Loan from| Interest on Loan from| Interest on Loan from| Interest on Loan from

Holding Co. Bank Holding Co. Bank
Opening balances - - B -
Movement during the year:
- Interest Accrued during the year 426.97 2,492.04 415.49 2.660.86
- Interest Paid during the year (426.97) (2,485.41) (415.49) (2,660.86)
Closing balances - 6.63 - -
Summary of material accounfing policies 2
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements. 1to 40
As per our regfort of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For GAC S4 Associales Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
ICAI Firm Relgistration Mo. : 005193N
Ch ar{ere:/ coountants
CA Shashi Gupla - Santanu Mukherjee
Parlner Director
1CAl Membership No. : (84110 (DIN:- 10855834)
! pA—
o Lo

Place: New Dalhi Vikas Awasthi ; Goutam Kumar Mishra 2haieb Mandal
Date:02 052025 Company Secrelary Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED

CIN- U45500DL2017GOI317401

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise state d)

(a) Equity Share Capital

As per our report of even date

For GAC 3 & Associates

ICAI Firm Registration No. : 005193N
Chartered/Accountants

/ .
CA Shashié]ﬁ,%

Partner
ICAl Membership No. : 084110

Place: New Delhi
Date:02.05.2025

Particulars Amount |
Balance as at 01st April, 2023 17,300.001
Changes in equity share capital during the year =
Balance as at 31st March 2024 17,300.00
Balance as at 01st April, 2024 17,300.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31st March 2025 17,300.00
(b) Other Equity
Particulars Reserves & Surplus Other Quasi equity Total
Comprehensive
Retained Earnings income
Balance as at 01st April, 2023 3,643.28 - 1,386.00 5,029.28
Profit for the year 2,387.83 - - 2,387.83
Other Comprehensive income for the year . = - 5
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2,387.83 - - 2,387.83
Addition in Quasi Equity - - = -
Balance as at 31st March 2024 6,031.11 1,386.00 7,417.11
Balance as at 01st April, 2024 6,031.11 - 1,386.00 7,417.11
Total profit for the year 2,376.39 - - 2,376.39
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,376.39 - - 2,376.39
Addition in Quasi Equity - i = 5
Balance as at 31st March 2025 8,407.50 - 1,386.00 9,793.50
Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements. 1to40

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited

yn .

Santanu Mukherjee
Director
(DiN:- 10895834)

s e

¥
Vikas Awasthi Goutam Kumar Mishra deb Mandal
Company Secretary Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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2.1.

i.

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Corporate Information

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited (IDHHL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International
Limited domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of companies Act 2013 applicable in
India. The company came into existence when, Ircon International Limited has been awarded the work of Six-
Laning of Davanagere — Haveri from km 260+000 to km 338+923 of NH-48 (Old NH-4) in the state of
Karnataka to be executed as Hybrid Annuity Project on DBOT Annuity Pattern under NHDP Phase — V in
accordance with the terms and conditions in the agreement with National Highway Authority of India (NHAT)
dated 19-06-2017. In pursuant to the provisions of ‘Request for Proposal’, the selected bidder ‘Ircon
International Limited” has formed a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) named Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway
Limited (IDHHL) as wholly owned subsidiary and incorporated under Companies Act, 2013 on 11th May 2017.
Accordingly, SPV has signed the Concession Agreement with NHAI on 1gth June 2017. In terms of the said
agreement, IDHHL has an obligation to complete construction of the project of Six laning of Davanagere
Haveri section and to keep the project assets in proper working condition including all projects assets whose
lives have expired. Total Project cost is Rs 1177 crore (i.e. Bid Project cost). 40% of the Bid Project cost, adjusted
for Price Index Multiple, shall and due and payable to the Concessionaire (IDHHL) in 5 equal instalments of
8% each during the construction period. The remaining Bid Project cost, adjusted for Price Index Multiple,
shall be due and payable in 30 biannual instalments commencing from the 18oth day of COD in accordance
with the Provisions of clause 23.6 of the agreement which is Annuity payments during Operation Period. The
Project is under Annuity pattern and will be under operation with the IDHHL for 15 years from the
Commercial Operational Date (COD). The payments of the same, under Annuity model will be payable at the
achievement of specific milestone as per the agreement.

NHATI vide its letter dated 19-07-2021 has de-scoped the work on main carriageway of 6.880 Kms, service road
for a length of 49.848 Kms and project facilities (14 Nos. of Bus bays and Bus Shelters,2 Nos. of Truck Lay
Byes and 1 Rest Area) . Accordingly, company has received Provisional Completion certificate with effect from
May 28, 2021.However, NHAI vide its letter dated 16.11.2022 has Re-scoped the balance work which was De-
scoped earlier. The registered office of the company located at C-4, District Centre, Saket, and New Delhi -
110017.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the company's Board of Directors in their meeting held on
02.05.2025.

Material accounting policies
Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

Statement of compliance

The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared on going concern basis following
accrual system of accounting and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended [rom
time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule I1I to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind
AS compliant Schedule I11), as applicable to the standalone financial statements.

Basis of measurement

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:
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2.2.1.

2.2.2.

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

e Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

Functional and Presentation Currency

These Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest Lakhs up to two decimals except for per
share data, unless otherwise stated.

Summary of material accounting policies

A summary of the material accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as
given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the
financial statements.

Current and non-current classification

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents, the Company has determined twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of
classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current in the balance sheet.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are initially stated at their cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment includes:

(a)its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade
discounts and rebates;

(b) Cost directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset which incurred in bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated separately if the cost of part is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item and useful life of that part is different from the useful life
of remaining asset.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets as specified under part C of schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 and disclosed in the
notes to accounts. The residual values is not more than 5% of the original cost of assets.

Property plant and equipment acquired during the period, individually costing up to 5000/~ are fully
depreciated, by keeping Re. 1 as token value for identification. However, Mobile phones provided to
employees are charged to statement of profit and loss irrespective of its value.
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2.2.3.

2.2-4.

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in profit or loss within other gains/(losses).

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily from the Service Concession Arrangement comprising the
construction and operation & maintenance services pertaining to an infrastructure (Road) on Hybrid
Annuity Mode.

Revenue from Service Concession Arrangement

The Company's contracts with the Customers for the construction and operation & maintenance services
under the Service Concession Arrangement (SCA) are accounted for as a single performance obligation as
contract is negotiated as a package with a single commercial objective and involves eomplex integration
of construction and maintenance services.

Revenue is recognised over the time using input method (i.e., percentage-of-completion method) which is
consistent with the transfer of control to the customer because there is a direct relationship between the
Company's effort (i.e., cost incurred) and the transfer of service to the customer. Under input method,
conlract revenue is recognized as revenue by reference to the stage of completion as at the reporting date.

The stage of completion is measured in terms of a proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the total
estimated cost attributable to the performance obligation. However, where the Company is not be able to
reasonably measure the outcome of a performance obligation, but the Company expects to recover the
costs incurred in satisfying the performance obligation, the Company recognises revenue only to the extent
of the costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the performance
obligation. 1

A c%lmulative catch-up adjustment would be recognized in the period in which the entity is able to
reasonably measure its progress. Changes to total estimated contract costs, if any, are recognised in the
period in which they are determined as assessed at the contract level.

Any expected losses on contracts in progress are charged to statement to profit & Loss, in total, in the
period the losses are identified.
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Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Revenue is measured at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation and is
adjusted for variable considerations. Variability in the transaction price arises primarily due to liquidated
damages, price variation clauses, incentives, change in law etc. The Company recognizes revenue for
variable consideration when it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount cumulative revenue
recognized will not occur. The company estimates the amount of revenue to be recognized on variable
consideration using most likely amount method. Consequently, amounts allocated to a satisfied
performance obligation are recognised as revenue, or as a reduction of revenue, in the period in which the
transaction price changes.

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the
contract scope or contract price. The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether
the services added to the existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling
price. Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch-up basis, while those
that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if additional services are
priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of existing contract and creation of a new
contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.

Coniract balances

Contract assets

If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional. The portion of the payments retained by the customer until final contract settlement is not
considered a significant financing component since it is usually intended to provide customer with a form
of security for Company’s remaining performance as specified under the contract, which is consistent with
the industry practice.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only
the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Trade receivable are
recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components. The
Company hold the trade receivable with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore
measure them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less loss allowance.

Contract liabilities

If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a
contract liability is recognised when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Financial Assets Under Service Concession Arrangements (Appendix C to Ind AS 115 —
Revenue from Coniracts with Customers)

The Company recognise a financial asset to the extent that it has an unconditional contractual right to
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor (“NHAT”) for the construction
services and Operation & Maintenance services.

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value and subsequently at amortized cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method and interest income on financial assets is presented under other
operating revenue.
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ii.

2.2.5.

2.2.6.

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Other income
Interest income is recognized using Effective Interest rate method.

All other income is accounted on accrual basis when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount
that will be received.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds and are charged to statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred
except when it meets the criteria for capitalisation as part of qualifying assets as per Ind AS 23.

Taxes
Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred income tax.
Current income Tax

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period and is computed
in accordance with relevant tax regulations.

Current income tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
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2.2.17.

15

ii.

2.2.8.

2.2.9.

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Employee Benefits
Short Term Employee Benefits

Employee benefits such as salaries and wages, short term compensated absences, and Performance
Related Pay (PRP) falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-
term employee benefits and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the statement of profit
and loss in in the period in which the employee renders the related services.

Post-employment benefits & other Long Term Employee Benefits

The employees of the Company are on deputation from Ircon International Limited, Holding Company.
The post employee benefits & other long term employee benefits includes gratuity, provident fund, post-
retirement medical facility, pension, leave encashment and leave travel concession.

As per arrangement with the Ircon International Limited, Holding Company, the cost in relation to post
employee & other long term Employee Benefits will be reimbursed to the holding Company on the basis
of fixed contribution based on basic pay and dearness allowance for the period of services rendered in the
Company.

The companies liability with respect to the long term employee benefit is limited to the extent of fixed
contribution to be paid to the holding company. Actual settlement of the long term employee liability will
be the responsibility of holding company.

The Contractual employees of the Company are not eligible for post employee benefits & other long term
employee benefits. '

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
unrestricted cash and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months and less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Contingent liabilities & contingent assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.

Provisions recognised by the Company include provisions for Maintenance, Demobilization,
Legal Cases, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), Onerous Contracts and others.
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2.2.10.

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

These provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates.

Omnerous contracts

If the Company has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is
recognised and measured as a provision. However, before a separate provision for an onerous
contract is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on assets
dedicated to that contract.

These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present obligations that may but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of such
obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect
of which likelihood of outflow of resources embo  dying economic benefits is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.

These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for
consideration.

Company as a lessee
Short Termn leases

The company has elected not to recognise ROU and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease
term of twelve months or less. The company recognises lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.2.11. Financial instruments

The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets

a) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets (excluding trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component,
being measured at transaction price) are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asset. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in statement of profit
and loss.

b) Subsequent measurement
Subsequent measurement of financial asset depends on the Company business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its financial asset as:

Financial assets at amortised cost

After initial measurement, the financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flow represent solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (ETR) method. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for recognising impairment loss on financial
assets measured at amortised cost, trade receivables, and other contractual rights to receive cash or other
financial asset.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company follows 'simplified approach' and measures the
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk
has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.

c) Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset, and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under
Ind AS 109.

The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received / receivable is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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2.2.12,

2.2.13,

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Financial liabilities

a) Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables and other financial
liabilities.

b) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at amortized cost

After initial recognition, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR (Effective Interest Rate) method. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

¢) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Fair value measurement

The company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured, are disclosed in the financial statements. Such
assets and liabilities are categorised within the level 3 (Valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable) of fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

Earnings Per Share

In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to equity
shareholders. The number of shares used in computing basic carnings per share is the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period.

In determining diluted earnings per share, the net profit attributable to equity shareholders and weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential
equity shares.
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2.2.15.

i’

iv.

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Prior Period Adjustment

Errors/omissions discovered in the current year relating to prior periods are treated as immaterial and
adjusted during the current year, if all such errors and omissions in aggregate does not exceed 0.50% of
total operating revenue as per last audited financial statement of the Company.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of Standalone Financial Statements requires the management to make judgements,
accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected
in future periods.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and
of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to
be different than those originally assessed.

Significant areas of estimation and judgements as stated in the respective accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the financial statements are as follows:

Allowances for uncollected trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amount are based on ageing of the receivable’s balances and
historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems not be
collectible.

Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against
the company. There are certain obligations which managements have concluded based on all available
facts and circumstances are not probable of payment or difficult to quantify reliably and such obligations
are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in notes Although there can be no assurance of the final
outcome of legal proceedings in which the company is involved. it is not expected that such contingencies
will have material effect on its financial position of probability.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the company’s past history, credit risk, existing market conditions as

well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and
the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the nature of business differences arising between

A
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the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate
future adjustments that will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period
in which such determination is made. The company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
Determining the recoverable amount of the assets is judgmental and involves the use of significant
estimates and assumptions. The estimates are based upon assumptions believed to be reasonable, but
which are inherently uncertain and unpredictable and do not reflect unanticipated events and
circumstances that may occur.

Revenue recognition

The company’s revenue recognition policy, which is set out in Note 2.2.4, is central to how the company
values the work it has carried out in each financial year.

These policies require forecasts to be made of the outcomes of Contracts, which require, assessments and
judgements to be made on changes in scope of work and claims and variations.

The Company has incorporated significant judgements over contractual entitlements for long term
project. The range of potential outcomes could result in a materially positive or negative change to
underlying profitability and cash flow.

Estimates are also required with respect to the below mentioned aspects of the contract:

» Determination of stage of completion

» Estimation of project completion date

+ Provisions for foreseeable loses

« Estimated total revenues and estimated total costs to completion, including claims and variations.

These are reviewed at each reporting date and adjust to reflect the current best estimates.
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3 Property, Plant and Equipment

Particulars. Computers Plant and Equipments Vehicles Total

Gross Carrying Amount (At Cost)

As at 01st April 2023 0.87 82.36 4564 128.87
Additions - - 9.10 9.10
Disposals/Adjustments - - (6.52) (6.52)
As at 31st March 2024 0.87 82.36 48.22 131.45
As at 01st April 2024 087 82.36 4822 13145
Additions 0.23 - . 0.23
Disposals/Adjustments - - - -
As at 31st March 2025 1.10 82.36 48.22 131.68
Depreciation and Impairment

As at 01st April 2023 065 817 408 1290
Depreciation charge for the year 0.14 10.84 493 15.91
Impairment - - - -
Disposals/Adjustments - - {0.59) (0.58)
As at 31st March 2024 0.78 19.01 B.42 28.22
As at 01st April 2024 0.79 19.01 8.42 28.22
Depreciation charge for the year 004 7.90 573 1367
Impairment - - -

Disposals/Adjustments - - - ®
As at 31st March 2025 0.83 26.91 14.15 41.89
Net book value

As at 31st March 2025 0.27 55.45 34.07 89.79
As at 31st March 2024 0.08 63.35 39.80 103.23
Note:

(i) Depreciation is provided based on useful life supported by the technical evaluation considering business specific usage, the consumption pattern of the assets

and the past performance of similar assets.
Estimated useful life of assets are as follows:

Useful life adopted based on technical
Class of Assets Useful lives as per Schedule Il (Years) evaluation (in years) *
Plant and Machinery 8-15 1-15
Computers 3-8 36
Vehicles 8-10 810

* Each significant companent of the asset has been considered for determination of useful life of the assets.
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4 Deferred Tax Assets (Net) and Income Tax
Disclosure pursuant io Ind AS 12 “income Taxes”

A) The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024 are: -

Particulars

For the year ended
31.03.2025

For the year ended
31.03.2024

Current income tax

Current income {ax charge

Adjustment in respect of curment tax of previous year
Deferred tax

Ralating to originalion and reversal of temporary differences

816.15

012

82140
283

062

816.27

824.85

{Income tax expense reported in the statement of Profit and Loss
Other Comprehensive i (OCI) Szcti

Income tax refated to items recognised in OCI during the vear:
Nel loss/inain} on remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Net lossfgain} on forsign operation translation

Income tax exg reported in the OCI section

B) The reconciliation of tax

and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for 31st March 2025 and 31 March 2024

Particulars

For the year ended
31.03.2025

For the year ended
31.03.2024

1. Accounting profit before income fax

2. Corporate tax rake as per Income tax Act, 1961
2. Tax on accounting profit (3} = (1) * (2)

4. Effect of tax adjustments

(i} Adjustments in respect of currant income tax of previous years
(ii) Litilisation of previously unrecognised tax fosses
(iii} Impact of Rate Difference

(iv) Depreciation Impact

(v] Neon-deductible expenses for tax purposes:
-Other country additionat fax

-Other nor-deductible expenses.

Delerred tax expenses/{income)

(vi) Tax effect of various other items

319266
2517%
B803.53

12.74

321267
2517%
#0857

283

12.81

065

Total effect of tax adjustments

12.74

16.29

816.27

82485

5. Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (3+4)
6. Effective tax rate 6 = 511

25.57%|

25.67

C) G Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss

t of deferred tax assets and (fiabilities) in Bal

Particulars Statements of Profit and Loss

31-Mar-25

Balance Sheet
H-Mar-25

Statements of Profit and Loss
H-Mar-24

Balance Sheet
31-Mar-24

Property, Plant & Equipment (inciuding intangible); Difference in book

depreciation and income tax depreciation (012

(249)

082

(@37

Net deferred tax Assets/(Liabilities) (0.12)

(2.49)

0.62

@.31)

D) Reflected in the Balance Sheet as foll

Particulars

Asat
31st March, 2025

As at
3ist March, 2024

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

(2.49)

(2370

Deferred Tax Assetsl{Liabilities) (Net]

(2.49)

{237)

Note: Deferred tax azsets and Deferred tax liabiliies have been offset as they relate to the same govemning laws.

E) Reconciliation of deferred tax (liabilities)/assets:
As at 31.03.2025

{Particulars Balance

As at 01st April 2024 (Net)

Recognised in Statement of

Profit and Loss

Recognised in OC!

Balance
As at 31st March 2025 (Net)

Pre-incorporation expense

Difference in Book depreciation and Income tax depraciation

(2.37)
Carry forward losses 5

{012

(2.49)

|Net deferred tax Assets/{Liabilities) (237)

012

{2.49)

As at 31.03.2024

Particulars Batance

=

R ised in OCI

As at 01st April 2023 (Net)

ql in St of
Profit and Loss

=

Balance
As at 315t March 2024 (Net)

Pre-incorporation axpense

Difference in Book depreciation and Income tax depreciation (1.75)

((]-.62}

(2-.3?]

Nat deferred fax Assets/{Liabilities) (1.75)

(0.62)

(2.37)
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5 Non Current Asset-Financial Asset
51 Non Current Financlal Assets- Loans

As at
3ist March, 2025

Asat
st March, 2024

lfa:ﬁculam
(u and considerad o

Ehaff Loans and Advances
- Loan bo reated paries-KMP (refer note below)

o)

D&

123

Tkl

0.83

133

MNote: Loan and ad

in the nature of Leans granted to the related

Type of Borrower

As at 31st March, 2024

As at B1st March, 2025
Amount of Loan
or advance in
the nature of

% of tofal loans.
and advances
inthe nature of

Amount of Loan
ar advance in
the nature of

% of total loans
and advances
in the nature of

eatstanding”

loan

loans™

loan

loans™

Loan o KMPs

0.83

100%

Total

0.83

100%

123

1.23

100%

100%

6.1

* Represents loan or advance in lhe nalure of lzan,
** Raprasants peroentage Io the fotal Inans or advances in the natwe offoans.

Other Non-Cunront Financisl Assets

Particulars

Asat

31st March, 2025

Asat

3ist 2024

(Unsecured and corsidered good)
Security Deposit

Contract Assets:

-From Construefion Contract

Interest accrued but not due
- Loan & advancs o KMP

35.07

38,76384

D2z

T

41,316,682

IR %]

Total

38,799.10

41,351.12

Current Assets - Financial Asscts
Trade Recaivables

Particulars

Asat

31st March, 2025

Secured considered good
Unsecured considered good

Trad: which izve signifi
Trade reoelvadlea-credit impaimed

| increasa in erodil rick

Less: Tor doubitfil frac

2,328,989

Az at

| 3tsthamh 2024 |

22141

232899

223441

Total

7,326.99

273841

Naote:
Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule for the year ended as at 312t March 2025 and 31st March 2024
For the year ended 31st March 2025

Unbilled

Not Due

Outstanding for the year ended March 31st, 2025 fram the due date of payment

F‘aﬂicuhu

Less than 6
morths

& months - 1
year

1-2 years

23 years

More than 3 years

Total

e TEErTE A
oo

Trade Rensivabh
— which have sigrificand
increase in crodit risk

570.62

Trade R
— cradit impairad
DCisputed  Trade Receivables
Iderad good =
Cispulsd Trade Recoivables -
which hava significant increase
in eredit risk

Disputed Trade Recevablas —|
cradit impaired

4600

24247

46647

41214

2328599

570,62
Less: Impainnen| Adowance

PA2AT

A56.4T

41214

232800

Total S70.62

24217

456.47

41214

2,378.99

*Trade receivables pertains fo NHAI
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For the year ended 31st March 2024
Particulars Unbifled Not Due Outstanding for the year ended March 31st, 2024 from the dus dats of payment

lessthanf | &months-1 1-2 years 23 yoars More than 3 years touy

manths year

Undisputed Trade recaivahles — ot
idorad good 42381 = 385.06 37557 05 66 2819 21372 22344

Undisputed Trade Receivabizal
- which  have significant
increasa in credit rish

|Urdisputsd Trade Recsivables
i credit impaired - =
Dispubed  Trade Recoivablosf
considered gocd - - - a = o
Lieputed Trade Reseivables -
which have significan] increase
in cradit risk - - - - - -
Dispided Trade Receivabies -]
cradit impaired e - - - - o I -

43361 - 386.06 37557 606.66 2878 HaTz 233441

Less: impairment Alowance - - - o = : S
|T°hi 423.61 - 386.06 375.57 B06.66 228,79 21372 223441

62 Current Financial Assets - Cash and Gash

Asat As at
Particul
ki3 3ist March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Balances with banks:

Earmarked Funds [refer note below)

- On cwrenl actounts 101842 14.60
Other Balances (refer note belaw)

- Deposits with original maturity af less then 3 months 350,00 4,167.00
Total 36845 a18160

Nate: Rs 135945 lakhs held In escrow aceount & Depoeils (312l March 2024: s 418760 Iakhs held |n escron acoounl & Depesits) which are sarmarked fund as par concassion
agreement entaned with NHAL

6.3 Current Financial Assets - Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalent

i Asat As at
Parti
A 315t March, 2025 3st Marsh, 2024
Other Bank Balances
Depasils wilh criginal maturity of mees than 3 monihs but lsss than 12 months {refer note below) 12.977.00 53700
Total 12,277.00 5,376.00 |
MNate: Rs 1227700 lakhs held in Deposils (315! March 2024: Rs 5376.00 lakhs) which are kexd fud az par i ag enlared with MHAL

6.4 Cument Financlal Assets - Loans

7 Asat Asat
Particulars 31st March, 2025 st March, 2024

I S ered good)
Staff Loans and Advances
- Luan to refated paries-KIP (Refer note below) 0.65 0.40
- Chthers - -
Total 0.65 0.40
Nate: Loan and advances in the nature of Leans granted to the refated parties:

B e oam | % o tota loams | 42U of Lol o, 540

and advances and advances
Type of Borrower the r::::u of otk e o tho r::u“re of Inthe o
= fin? Ioans®™ outstanding® loans

Loan to KMPs 0.65 100% 0.40 100%
Total 65 100% 0.40 100%

* Represenls loan or advance in the nature of loen,
** Represents percentage ko Lhe lolal loans or advances In the neties of bans,
65 Cument Assets - Other Financial Assets

Az al Asat
Particulars st March, 2025 st March, 2024

] Sand el mood)
{ Irtoroet Accrsed hot Mot Duoaa
- Fixed Deposit 179.68 67.88
{ Contract Assets:
~From Constuction Contract 3,006.07 282358
“Money Withhe!d by Client 47718 404.97
Interest Recoverable an Financial Assels 1813.16 1,936.06
Oihar Reooverable 0,38 038
Total 547648 5230.87
1 Cument Tax Assets {Nat)
ficul Asat Az at
. st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Taxes Paid including TDS and Advanes Tax (Net of provisicn for t2:g 273,26 22472
Total 213.36 24T

8 Other Current Assets

A= at As at
MetMarch 2025 |  SstMarch 2024

1,156.83 2.388.68 s € =
= 058 - 1
3362 452

1,190.45 2414 39
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%  Equity Share Capital

> As at As at
P
MO 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Authorised Share Capital
21,70,50,000 (31.03.2024 217050000) Eauity shares of Re 10.each 21,705.00 21,705.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
17,30,00,000 (31.03.2024 17,30.00,000) Equity shares of Rs 10 each-fully paid 17,300.00 17.300.00
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 17,300.00 17,300.00
(a) Promoter's shareholding
| Parficulars Shares held by Promoter at the end of the year Y% change during
Promoter Name No. of shares % of total shares the period
As at 31st March, 2025 Ircon International Limited 17,30,00,000 100% -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 17,30,00,000 100%, -
As at B1st March, 2024 ircon International Limited 17.30,00,000 T00%| -
Outstanding at the end of the year 17,30,00,000 100% -
b) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
No. of Shares Amount in Lakhs No. of Shares Amount in Lakhs
At the beginning of the year 17,30,00,000.00 17,300.00 17,30,00,000.00 17.300.00
Add: Shares issued during the year = . - -
Less: Shares Buy Back during the year - LB - -
Quistanding at the end of the year 17,30,00,000.00 17,300.00 17,30,00,000.00 17,300.00
{c) Terms! rights attached to equity shares
(i) Voting
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vole per share.
(1) Liquidation

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equily shares will be entiffed o receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will b2 in
proportion fo the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

(iif) Dividend

The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject fo the approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting.

{d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
No. of Shares % holding in the class No. of Shares % holding in the
class

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Ircon International Limited and its nominees™
*Including 800 Shares hold by nominees

173000000 100% 173000000 100%

{f) For the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared:
(i} Na shares have been aliotted as fully paid-up pursuant to contract(s} without payment being received in cash.
(i) Mo shares have been allottad as fully paid-up by way of bonus shares and,

(iif} Mo shares have been bought back.

10 Other Equity
As at As at
e 3st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Retained Eamings BAOT 50 6,031.11
Quasi Equity (inferest Free Loan From Ircon) 1,386.00 1.386.00
Total 9,793.50 TA1T11
i}  Movement as per below:
Retained Eamings
Particul Asat As at
ki 31t March, 2025 31t March, 2024
Opening Balance 6.031.11 3643.28
Transfer from surplus in slatement of profit and loss 2376.39 2,387.83
Closing Balance 8,407.50 6,031.11
GQuasi Equity (Interest free Loan From Ircan)
Asat Asat
Fatcyiars 31t March, 2025 315t March, 2024
Opening Balance 1,386.00 1,386.00
Add: Receipt of Quasi Equity - -
Closing Balance 1,386.00 1,386.00
ii)  Nature and Purpose:
Retained Earnings
Retained Eamings represents the undistributed profits of he Company.
Quasi Equity

Quasi Equity Instument:-Interest free loan Jquast equity recaived from holding company.
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111 Non Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings

Particulars

As at
st March, 2025

As at
st March, 2024

Secured :
Term Loan From Bank

#Loan from Bunjab National Bark™

Unsecured ;
Loan from Helding Caompany*

25212.34

4,713.00

27,504.45

4.713.00

Total

29,925.34

3221745

# The company has applied term loan for the purpose for which loan were obtained
Notes :

Un-Secured Loans

*Terms & Conditions of Loan from Holding Company(ircon International Limited)
1. Sanction :- 26.46 Crores

(] Interest rate to be charged on Inan shall be at SB) one year MCLR rate prevailing from time fo ime plus 0.50%. Presently, the applicable Interest rale

(if) Duration of the Loan Disbursement would be a period of 6 month from the dale of signing this agreement.
{iii) Unsecured loan shall be repaid in 2.5 years starting after 17 years from COD in structured half yearly instalinents.

() Inerest 1o ba caleulated on manthly rest basis and payable in half yearly instalments.

2, Sanction ;- 25.00 Crores

(i) Interest rate: to be charged on the loan shall be at PNE 1-month MCLR +0.25% (a5 applicable
(i) Duration of Loan Disbursement would be a period of 1 vear from the date of signing of agre
{iii} Unsecured Loan shall be repald in 2.5 years starting afler 12 years from COD ar repayment af full

(iv) Interest to be calculated on manthly rest basis.

Secured Loans
** Terms & Conditions of Loan from Punjab National Bank
1. Sanction :- 502.76 Crores

(i} Interest rate to be charged on lnan shall be at 1 Month MCLR +0.30%. As applicable from fime

(i) Repayment period will be 10 years and § months {Starting w.e.f 24.04.2021 and last instalment on 24.07.2031)

(iil) Term loan shall be repaid in 42 Querterly instalments starting from 24th April 2021,
(iv) Interest shall be paid 2¢ and when due.

(v) Term Loan 10 be backed by uncorditional & imevocable corporate guarantee of Mfs Ircon International Limited {rated CARE AAA) up to recoipt of 15t annully from NHA| or COD pius 180 days whichever

is later
{vi) The loan shall be secured by-

(8) First charae by way of hypothecation of all fixed assel! movable assets of the company(Other than project assets: Except those acquired out of the free fiow of the tompany in operation phase) and being

informed from time to time to lender,

(b) First charge on the project's book debis . Operating cash flow, Receivables, Commission, Revenues of whalsoever nature and wherever arising, Present and future intangibles, goodwill and uncalled

capilal{Present and future).

(c.) A first charge on project’s bank accounts, including but not limited 1o the escrow account

utilised in a manner and priority to be decided by lender/ investors,

{d) Assig_nrnent of all company’s rights and interest under ail the 2greement related to project, letter of cred|l(if any), and guaraniee and performance bond provided by any party for any contract related fo

projectin Favor of borrower.

() Substitution agreement executed by authority on behalf of lender for the facifity.
(1) Assignment of all applicable insurance policies.

112 Other Non Current Financial Liabilities

from time fo time}, Presently, the applicable Inferest rale is 8.75% P.a.
ement.

fo time. Presently, the applicable Inferest rate is 8.60% Pa.

As at As at
fatioltys 31ist March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Deposits, Retention money and Maoney Withheld - 3206
Total - 32.06
12 Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities
e e e A e
2 As at As at
Sl 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Secured :
Term Loan From Bank
#Current malurities of iong- tarm debt 229191 251200
Total 2,291.91 2,512.00
# The company has applied term loan for the purpose for which loan were obtained
“For detalled terms & condition refer note no 11.1
122 Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables
As at As at
Particulie 3st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
{a} Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 238 20.51
(b) Other than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprices -
-Payable to Holding Company 3,017.33 863.36
-Payable o Others 29.29 023
Total 3,049.00 884.10
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Trade payables Ageing Schedule for the year ended as at 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024

Particulars

Unbilled| Not due

Outstanding for the year ended as at 315t

March, 2025 from the due date of payment

1-2 years

2.3 years

Total

and small enterprises
Tofal outstanding dues of creditors oiher]
than micro enferprises and small enterprises

Disputed dues of micro enlerprisas  and
small enterprises

Disputed dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of micro enlerprises| 238

29.29

Less than 1 year

3m733

More than 3 years

238

3,046.61

Particulars

Unbilled| Not due

Qutstanding for the

Yyear ended as at 31st March, 2024 from the due date of payment

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

Tolal outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises

Total outslanding dues of creditors other,
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed dues of micr enterprises and

small enterprises
Dispuled dues of creditors ofher than micra
enterprises and small enterprises

19.98

4473

0353

B18.86

Total

More than 3 years

2051

B63.59

123 Current Financial Liabilities - Othar Financial Liabilities

| Particulars

As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Unsecured

[ Money Withhetd of

-Holding Company

- Others

Interest acerued on secured borrowings
Other payable (including staff payable)

334.42
0.01
6.63

337 87
3.05

2762

Total

341.06

368.54

13 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Contract Liabilities
- Advance from client

Statutory dues
Others

101.70

32753

Total

101.70

14 Current Tax Liabilities {Net)

Particulars

As at
Fst March, 2025

Asat
31st March, 2024

Provision for Income tax (Net of Advance tax & TDS)

Total

15.1 Revenue from operations

Particulars

For fieeqy spded

Foc thegea ey e

Revenue From Contract with customers:
Centract revenue under SCA [Refer Note No 31)
Other Operating Income

| tIncome on Financial Assels

10,744.02

5,256.62

6,874.92

5744 50

16,005.64

12,619.42
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152 Other Income

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Interest Income:
- Intereston Term Deposit B0Z55 575.29
- Interest on Staff Loan on 0.13
Profiton sale of assets - 2.58
Miscellansous income 021 _
Total B802.57 577.98
16 Project Expenses
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Wark Expenses 987277 621715
Operation and Maintenance Expenditure 308.53 234 65
Inspection, Geo Techineal Investigation & Survey Exp. Eic 125.89 17.26
Repairs and Maintenance of Machinery - 092
Power, Electricity and Water charges 104.27 113.10
Insurance 80.40 88.29
Total 10,491.86 6,731.38
17 Employee benefits expenses
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Salary & Wages 80.59 67.58
Contribufion to Provident and other Funds 495 4.33
Retirement Benefits 9.28 1222
Total 94.82 84.13
18 Finance Cost
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Interest Expense
- Holding Company 42697 41548
- Banks 249204 2,660.86
- Stalutory Interest - 2413
Bank Guarantee & Other Charges .59 933
Total 2,927.80 3,109.81
19 Other Expenses
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Printing & Stationary expenses 014 012
Lepal & Professional charges 2923 5.86
Auditor Remuneration 1.99 177
Rent 3.31 33
Rates and Taxes 015 =
Advertisement & publicity - OEE
Travelling & Conveyance s “‘
Bank guaranlee and other charges 0.02 1.34
Corporate social responsibility (Refer note no 35) 50,15 2832
Miscellaneous Fxpenses 233 0.85
Total 87.90 43.50
(i) Paymentto the Statutory Auditors
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
{a) Audit Fee - cument year 1.06 0.96
(b) Limited Raview Fees 0.61 0.53
(c) Tax Audit Fees - current year 032 0.28
Total 1.69 177

68




IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL2017G0I317401

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

20 Disclosure as per Ind AS 21 ‘The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’

The amount of exchange differences {net) credited/debited to the statement of profit and loss is Nil (Previous year: Nil).

21 Disclosure as per Ind AS 19 on Employee benefits

a. The employees in Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited are posled on Deputation/secondment basis from Ircon Intemational Limited (Holding Company).

b. In terms of accounting policy of the Company (Note No. 2.2.7) and amrangement with the Holding Company, the provision for Refiremen
gratuity, post retirement medical benefits, Leaves and other terminal benefils of nominated employess is being made
payable towards provident fund, pension, gratuity, post refrement medical benefits, Leaves and other terminal ben

Expenses” (Note 17).

c. Provident Fund Contribution of the employees on nomination/secondment have been regularly deposited by the holding company with its P_F Trust,

22 The Company has adopted certain new accounting standards and amendments effective fram April 1, 2024. Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts, wh
comprehensive guidancs an the recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of insurance conltracts; however, it had no impact on the

Company has not enfered into any insurance confracts.

Further, an amendment to Ind AS 116, Leases, relating to lease liabilities arising from sale and leaseback fransa
such transactions, the amendment did not affect its financial statements. As of the reporting date, there are no new

23 Related Party Disclosures
Disclosures in compliance with Ind AS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ are as under;
a) List of Related Parties
(i)  Holding company
Ircon Intemnational Limited
(i) Key Management Personnel (KMP)

t Benefits such as provident fund, pension,
by Holding company in terms of Ind AS-19. The amount paid or
efits to the holding company are included in “Employee Benefit

ich replaces Ind AS 104, provides
Company's financial statements as the

clions, was also notified. Since the Company has not undertaken any
standards that have been nolified but are not yet effective.

[Name Designation
Shri Mascod Ahmed (w.e.f. 2nd August 2021) Director
Ms. Aradhana Garg (w.e.f. 23rd January 2024) Director
Shri Rohit Parmar (w.e.f. st June 2022 to 24ih April 2024) Director
Shri Yogesh Kumar Mishra (w.e.f, 1st February 2024) Director
Shri Santanu Mukherjee (w.e.f. 3rd January 2025) Director
Shri Rabindra Kumar Jaiswal ( 30th April 2024 to 31st January 2025) Director
Shri Mahadeb Mandal (w.e.f. 1st July 2021) Chief Financial Officer
Shri Goutam Kumar Mishra (w.e.f. 24th August 2022) Chief Executive Officer
Shri Pradeep Kumar Baisoya (w.e.f. 12th April 2022 to 14th Feb 2025) Company Secretary
b) Transaction with KMP's are as under: {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Short term employee benefits 64.75 61.01
Post employment benefits 4.30 13.04
Sitting fes = =
Other long-term employee benefits 9.28 U
Staff Welfare = =
Repayment of Loan 040 0.37
Accrued Interest on loan 0.1 0.13
Other Advance granted 025
Total 79.09 77.79
¥} Truosavuuns Wikl UUIET rejateq parues are as tollows: (Rs. In Lakhs)
Nature of transaction Name of related party | Nature of relationship e 2?0?;;:; 2o ot ;TO’:;;;:M
1) Reimbursement expenses 26.84 3351
2) Rent Expense (inclusive of GST y 331 331
3; 0am Exzeenditlgre } g L";‘ei’t:j“"“a' Holding Company 30518 45.41
4 Interest on Loan '“ 426.97 415.49
5) Works Contract 987277 6,217.16
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d) Outstanding balances with the related parties are as follows: (Rs. In Lakhs)
Nature of transaction Name of related party | Nature of relations hip As at As at
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Balance Payable as on reporting date : 3,351.74 1,201.23
i ; :
Unsecured Loan ofs L E:;?;Ema Holding Company 471300 4,713.00
Equity Share Capital (Including Quasi equily) 18,686.00 18,686.00
€) Outstanding balances with the KMPs are as follows:
[Nature of transaction Name of related party [ Nature of relationship As at As at
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Loan to KMP S 1.23 163
Interest Accrued ot Ioan Mahadeb Mandal Chief Financial Officer 024 043
Other Advance Goutam Kumar Mishra | Chief Executive Officer 025 =

f) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

(i) Transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent lo those that prevail in arm's length transactions.
(i) Balances payable of related parties at the reporting date are unsecured and setflement oceurs thro

loan as mentioned in Note no 11.1 of the financial statement and loan to KMP
24 Earnings per share (EPS)

Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 ‘Earnings per share'

ugh banking transactions. These balances are interest free except unsecured

() Basic EPS s calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

(b) Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable (o the equity holders after considering the effect of dilution by weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on convearsion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

(i) Basic and diluted earnings per share {in Rs.)

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Profit atiributable to Equity holders (Rs. in lakhs) (i) 2376.39 2,387.82

No.of equity shares 17,30,00,000.00 17,30,00,000.00

Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic and Diluted EPS {In Numbers) iif) 17,30,00,000.00 17,30,00,000.00

Eamings per share (Basic) 137 138

Earnings per share (Diluted) 137 1.38

Face value per share 10.00 10.00

(i) Profit attributable to equity shareholders (used as numerator) (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended Forthe year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Profi for the year as per Statement of Profit and Loss 3,376.39 2,387.82

Profit attributable lo Equity holders of the company used for computing EPS 2,376.39 2,387.82

(i) Weighted average number of equity shares (used as denominator) (Nos.)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Opening balance of issued equity shares 17,30,00,000.00 17,30,00,000.00

Equily shares issued during the period - -

Equity shares outstanding as on date 17,30,00,000.00 17,30,00,000.00

Weighted average number of equity shares for computing Basic EPS 17,30,00,000.00 17,30,00,000.00

|Dilution Effect:

Add: Weighted average numbers of potential equity shares outstanding during the year - =

17,30,00,000.00 17,30,00,000.00

Weighted average number of equity shares for computing Diluted EPS

LT
7

be,

70

“ et
Af/




IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED

CIN- U45500DL2017GOI317401

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakh unless otherwise staled)

25 Impairment of Assets

2

2

2

During the yeor, Company has camied out assessment on impairment of individual assals by working out the recoverable amount based on lower of the net realizable value and camying cosl in lerms of Ind AS 36, “Impaimsnt of Assets”
natified under section 133 of the companies Act, 2013 read with Ride 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian accounting standards) Amendiment Rules 2016, As there is no indication of
impairment, no impairment Ioss has been recognised during the year (Previous year. Mi)

Provisien, Contingancies and Commit
(a) Provisions
Provisions has been made in accordance with ind AS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabifities and Corfingent Assete’

(b) Contingent liabilities
[Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

(a) Claim against the company not acknowiadge as debt
- Income tax demand® 347.20 M7
(b G luding financid g = =
[c) Gither money for which the compary is confingenty iable - -

* An infimation demand order has been issued under 143(1), for an amount of Rs. 121.58 Lakh for the AY 2023-24 daied 08.01.2024 & Rs, 22562 Lakh for the AY 2!-!‘:12_-23 dated 01.03.2024. For the AY 2022-23, the
company ot relief from [TAT vide order dated 12.03.2025 where the amount of demand Rs. 127 58 Lakh veas dropped. For the AY 2023-24, the company oot refief from CIT(A) under section 250 of the Income tax Act
1961 vide order dated 00.01.2024 where the amount of demant Rs. 225.62 Lakh was dropped.

(g} Contingent assots
No:ciaims in favour of the company } s receivabies 2 on the reporfing tate 35 per vl AS 37 Provisions, Confingent Lisbiiies and Contingsnt Asseis.
) Commitments

Capital Estimated amount of contracts remaining o be executed on capital account (Net of advance) and not provided for is Nil (March 31st 2024 INif).
Other Commitmeants: Rs 3422 61 Lakh (March 31st, 2024: Rs, 950711 Lakh).

Segment Reporting
i) General Information
Operating segmests are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available which is being evaluated requlardy by the Chisf Operating Decision Maker {CODR) in deciding how to
dlocate resources and assessing performance, The Board of Direclors of the Company is the Chief Cperating Decision Maker (CODM]. The Company is engaged in the business of infrastructire development in the state

chatrﬁldcamdﬂ‘eCliefOpa‘aﬁ‘ngecisimMakar{CﬁDH} fors the oparating resulls of the busi as asingle hence no ser g needs to be disclosed in 2 with the reg
of Ind AS 108.
(i) Inds ion abouwt geograp i
As the Company operates in a single geographical ssgmentie, |ndia, hence o Separate geographical segment is disclosed.
(i) Information about major customer
During the year ended March 31st, 2025, Total Revenve from operation of Rs. 16,005.64 Lakh (March 315t 2024 Rs. 1261042 Lakh) are derived lom @ singte customer ie, NHAI which is mere than 10% of the
Company's totd revenue.
Financial Risk Managemant
The Company's principal financial liabiities comprise borowings, trade bles and other financial liabifies. The main purpose of these financial Eatilities is to finance the Company's operations. The Campany's principal financial assets

include Trade receivables, cash and short-term deposits and x;ﬂér financial assets. The Company is exposed (o the following risks from ifs use of Anancial instruments: Credit risk, Liquidily risk and Market risk. This note presents information
about the campany’s exposure [ each of the above fisks and the company’s objectives, policies and processes for measliring and managing risk.

Risk Management Framework
The Company's activifies make it suscentible to various ricks, Tha Company has taken adequate measures to address such by developing adequate systems and ices. The Board of Directors has ouerall responsibibty for the
establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework.
a) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company i a customer or countesparty (o & financial Instrument falls to meet its confractal obiigations resulting in a financial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises principaily
from trade receivabies, cash and cash equivalents with barks and ether financial assets. The Company's exposure and credit rafings of iis counterparties are continuously monitered by the management.

Cash and cash equivalents
The cash mcMomwamaeheuhpuhﬁcwbammmmmaMgi
Trade Receivables and other financial assets

Arrangement (SCA). The credi risk arising from these trade receivables and unbifled revenue s fimited because the counterparty is Nationa! Highways Authority of India (NHAL), an aut agency of G of
India, with capacity to meet the obligations and therefore, the risk of defaultis very negligibie or Nil

i) Exposure to credit risk {Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Financial Assets for which allowanea ic moscurnd uslng s fmn mposted it b vess (LEGL)
Other Non Curment Financial Assets B2 a0
Dther Non Current Financial Assets Loans 083 1.23
Cash and Cesh Equivalents 1,368.45 4,181.60
Other bank balances 12.217.00 5,376.00
Current Loan & Advances 0.65 0.40
{Other Current Financial Assets 1,993 22 2004.32
Financial Assets for which allowance is measured using Simplified approach
Trade Receivables 232899 2,234.41
Contract Asset 43,247.10 44.551.37

(i) Provision for expected credit losses
Noimpairment loss has been recognised during the reporting year,

(i) Summary of iass allowance measured using life ime credit losses: - (Rs. In Lakh)
[Particutars 31Har-25 3iMar24

— Opening Allowances

=, A

-."1'/ -
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(i)

b)

i}
(i)

d)

£3 ram value measurements

a)

{Rs. In Lakh)

Su of loss allowance measured using simplified PE hi -
[Particelars H-Mar-25

31-Mar-24

Opening Allowances -
Provided during the year %
Utilization during the year .
Amount writien off during the year =

{Closing Allowances =

Na significant changes in estimaben techniques or assumplions were made during the reporting peried.
Liguidity risk

The Company manages kquidity risk by maintzining sufficient cash and marketable securities and by having aceess to funding thraugh an adequate amount of committed credit lines. The company regularly monitors the
position of Cash and Cash Equivaients vis-a-vie projections. Assessment of maturity profilas of financial assets and financial lizbiities and maintenance of Balance Sheet Enuidity ratios are considered while reviewing the:

iquidity position.
lTK:l: Company's investrent poicy and strategy are focuserd on preservation of capital and supporting the Company's Bquidity requi ts. The sanior Ma of the Company cversees its investment strategy and
achieve its investment ohjectives. The pokicy requires i g y to be i grade, with the primary objective of mnimising the potential risk of principal boss.
The table below provides details garding the significant fi ial lishilities a5 at 315t March 2025 & 315t March 2024 {Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2 years and above
Bomowings 2,291.91 28191 77,63143
Trade Payables 3.040.00 - -
Other Financial Lizbilities 341.06 - -
(Rs. In Lakh})
Particulars As at st March, 2024
Lessthan 1 Year 1-2 Years 2 years and above
Bomouings 2,512.00 3.456.00 26,761.45
rade Payables 284.10 - -
Other Financial Liabilijes 40050 - -
Market risk

Market risk fs the rick that changes in market prices, such as Toreign exchange rates and interest rates will 2ffect the Company’s income. The objective of market risk management is 1o manage and control market risk

exposures within acceptable parameters, while aptimising the return. The Board of Directors is responsible for setting up of policies and procedures 1o manage market risks of the Company.
Foreign Currency risk

The functional curency of the Company is Indian Rupees. The Company is nof expesed to any foreign cumency risk.

Interest rate risk

Imerest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or the fule cash Tlows of & financid instn

t will fluctuate because of ch: i

in market inferest rates. Financial instruments affected by interest rate risk includes deposits

with banks, firancial assets on SCA & borrowing from bark & retaled party. Interest rate risk on deposits with banks are very low s interest rate is fixed for the period of financial instruments, The Company is exposed fo
iltueﬁ@erﬂ:abhgmmrllmmm;s&mmmmng imemstra’sebecamthecashl‘hwsassodaiednﬂhIbaﬁrgrateburrmﬁngswllﬁucmtewmdm@esm inferest rates.

At the reporting date, interest rate profie of the Company’s interest bearing financial instruments is as follws:

|P=ttcu!m 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Fixed rate Instrument

Financial Asset 12,627.00 8,543.00
Financial Liabilities - -
Floating rate Instrument

Financial Asset 42769.91 4414640
Financial Liabilities 3221125 34,729.45
Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of Parfies are engaged in similar busi acfivities, or activities in the same region, or have economic features that would cause their abity to meet contractual

cbligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, polifical or other conditions. Cencenlralions indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performeance to developments affecting a parficular industry,

In crder to aueid i it of risk, the C ¥'s policies and procedures include specific guidelines 1o focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are
controfled and managed accordingly.
The following table gives detalls in respect of reverues genersled from 1ap five projects.
|Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Revenue from top 5 projects 16,005.64 12514 A2
Financial instruments by category
i As at 315t March, 2025
e Armorised Cost
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
(i) Nen current finangial assets-Loan 083
{1} Cther Mor current financial assets - - 3979010
{ii} Trade Receivables = - 2,328.99
(i) Cash and cash equivalents & Other bank balances - = 13,645.45
(v} Curent Loan & Advances . - 4,?6&23
(wi) Other cument financial assets : T 5,476,
= 2 8135150
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
i} Bofmowings - - 32217.25
{i) Trade Payables - 3,048.00
i) Other financial fabifites g 7 341.06
# - - 35,6807.31
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Particulars As at 315t March, 2024
__WI.____W_W
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
{i) Non current financial assets-Loan 123
(8) Other Non current financial assets - - 41,361.72
(iii) Trade Receivables - - 2234 41
(iv) Cash and cash equivalents & Other bank balances - - 9,557.60
() Cument Loan & Advances = = Q.40
(vi) Other current financial assets = - 523887
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
(i) Borrowings - - 34.72045
(i) Trade Payatles = £ 884.1D
(i} Cither financial akiftes = - 368.54
b) Fair value hierarchy
Financial assets and financial iabilies are measwed at f=ir valye in these financial statements and ae grouped into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The thres Levels are defined based on he observabilty of
i inpuls fo the W, as follows:

Leve! 1. Quoted prices {unadiusted) in acfive markets for identical assels or liabilites.
Lavel 2: Inputs ather than quoled prices included within Level 1 that e ohservable for the assel o liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 Unobservatle inputs for the assat or liabikity.

c) Carrying value and Fair value of financi | assets and liabilities as at 315t March 2025
Particulars Carrying Value Fair Value
TevelT TevelZ Tovery |
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
(i) Non cument financial sssets-Loan 023 0.63
{i) Other Non currert financial assets 38,799.10 - " 3979910
{if) Traxde Receivables 237899 - - 2,328.99
{iv} Cash and cash equivalents & Other bank baances 1354545 - - 13,645.45
(v) Loans 0.65 - . .65
(i) Cther curvent financial assels 547648 - - 547648
Fi al Liabilities at Amortized Cost
i) Bormowings 2.217.25 - = 22735
(i) Trade Payables 3.048.00 = - 3,048.00
[iii) Other financial iabilfios 341.06 5 = 341.08
Canrying value and Fair value of financial assets and liabilifies as at 31st March 2024
Particulars Carrying Value Fair Vatye
Level1 Level-Z Level-3
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
(if Non cumrent financial assets-Loan 123 1.23
(it) Other Non curment financial assets 41,351.72 = - 4135172
[iiiy Trade Recenvables 22344 - - 2,240
(iv) Cash and cash equivalents & Other bank halanges 0,557.60 - - 9,557.80
(v} Loans 0.40 - - : 235!.40
(vi) Other current financial assets 5,238.07 - = 238.87
Financial Liabilities at Amortizad Cost
(il Borrowings 34,720.45 = : 34,720.45
(F) Trade Payabies 88410 i - 884.10
i) Other financil liabifies 388.54 3 2 36854
- - — 35,982.09
The managemient assessad thet fair value of cash and cash equivalents, other bank bal trade Irade payables, and other current financial assels | liabifties approximate e camying amounts largely due

to the short-berm maturities of these instruments,

(i) The fair value of the financial assets and hatilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could b exchanged in 2 current transaction between viling parties.

{1) Loag {em variable rate b ings are evaluated by company on such as intereet rales, specific country risk factors and oiher risk factors. Based on this evaluation, the fair value of such payables are ngt
materiaily different from their camying amount

(i} During the FY 2024-25 & FY 2023-24, these were no transfers hebween Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 far value measuremens,

30 Capital Managemant
The Company's abjectives when aing capital are to saf ‘imdilwm:nmirweasanoingconcemmdtooptmdseretmnsm har The capital structure of the company is based on | of s siralngi
nd day-t-day needs with & focus on totel equity so a5 1o mentain investor, creditces and market confidence. The Mmanagement and e Board of Directors monitor the retum on capftal. The Company may take appropriate steps in order to
maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure,
Company has takan 3 barm loan during te FY 2024.95 Re NIl Previous Year Fa. il ) from Punjsb Nafional Bank o finarce il proieet. Company has taken Unsecured loan during the FY 202425 Rs il {Previctis Yaar Rs. Nl ) from holding company to financs
itz project. Following are Lhe debl aquity ratie

Particulars 31—!!5—25’ 31-Mar-24)
B gs {fote Mo. 1.1 8 127) 2MTI5 34,729.45
Long Tem Debt 32,217.25 34,720.45
Equify (Nole Mo, 5) 17,300.00 17,300.00
Other Equily (Nole Mo, 10) 5.753.50 747,11
Total Equity 27.083.50 AT
|Babt Equity Ratio 119 a1

1
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31 Revenue
A Disaggregation of Revenue
Sat out below s the disaggregation of the cempany's revenue from contracts with eustomers info operating segment and fype of product or services
For the year ended W
Ty”;:“"d X Revenue a5 per Ind AS 115 Method for measuring performance obligation Other Revenue Total as per Statement of
ces Profit and Loss
Domestic Foreign Total Input Method Output Method
Highway 10,749.02 = 10,748.02 10,748.02 - 5,256.62 16,005.64
Total 10,749.02 - 10,748.02 10,740.02 - 5,256.62 16,005.64
The revenus of Rs. 10749.02 Lakh is recognised over a period of time and Rs. it Lakh is recognisad point in ime.
Far the year ended 81.03.2024
T!rpescfemmr Revenue as per Ind AS 115 Method for ing perfor Other Revenue Total as per Statement of
Domestic Foreign Total Input Method Output Method Prafit and Lozs
[Hifway B - 587407 b.BALT z BLLS T2.610.47
Total 887497 n E,871. ; - . 1281947 |
The revenue of Rs 6874.92 ckh s recognised over 3 period of ime and Rs. Nil Lakh s recognised point in tana.

B. Contract balances

Particulars As at Asat

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Trade Receivables Moie 6.1) 232699 223441
Confract Assels (Nole 5 & 6.5 43.247.10 44.561.37
Confract liability {Note 13) - 327.53

] Trade receivables are non-inlerest bearing and the customer profile is National Highway Authodty of India. The Company's average project execufion cycle is around 24 to 36 months. General payment ferms include:
mabilisation advance, manthly Progress payments with a credi period ranging from 45 to 60 days.

i) Contract Assets are recognised over the period in which services are performed to represent the Company’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transfemed to the customer. It includes balances dus
from customers under construciion contracts that arise when the Company receives Payments rom customers as per terms of the contracts however the Tevente is recognised ouer the period under input method. Any
amount previausly recognised a5 2 contract asset is reclassified to fréde receivables on salfsfaction of te condition attached i.e. future sarice wihich is necessary o achieve the biling milsstone.

M in contract bal, during the year
Particulars Asat Asat
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
|Cantract asset at the Begining of the year 4455137 44,440.73
(Contract asset at the end of the year 43.247.10 44 551.37
Net increasel{decrease) {1,304.27)| 110,64
For the year 2020-25,, there has been net decrease of s, 1304.27 Lakh a5 compared o previous year increase by Rs. 110.64 Lakh respectively due to recognition of revenue based on input method whereas Lils for
werkdone are certified based on contract pondiion Rs 979603 Lakh s reciassified from unkillad revente to trade receivables duing the period.

ii) Contract Habilites relating to o i 2re bal due to cust these arise when a parficular mitestons payment exceads the revenue recognised to date under the input method and advance received
in long term eonstruckon contracts. The amaunt of Advance received gets adjusted over the construction penod as and when invoicing is made to the customer.

Particulars Asat Asat

st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Contract [abilies o the Beginning of the year - -
Contract iabilities & the end of the year - 327.53
]Hnt increasel{decrease) [327@ 337.53

C. Sct vut below is the amount of revenue recognised from;

Particulars Asat As at

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
{Amount included in contract iahiltes a1 the beginming of the year 327.53 -
{Pericrmance obl ation satisfied in previous year - -

D. Cost to obtain the contract
Amount recognised as asset s at 315t March 20255 Rs hil (s at 3t March 2024 15 Rs Nil)

Amount of Amorfisation recogrised in the stalement of Profit and Ince furing the yaar iz Ro Nil | FY 2023-24 Rs Na)

E. Cost to fulfil the contract
Ameunt recognised as assetas at 3Hst March, 2025 s N (As &t 31st March, 2024 hil)

Amount of emortisation recognised in the stalemant of prafit and loss during the year is N (FY 2023-24: M)

F. T jon price allocated to the ining perfe bligati
The ian price for remaining pext béigations shal be received over the contract period in propoction of the werk performediservices provided by the Company. Information about the Company’s performance
obligations are summarised below.

The: trans action price all o the aning pesf obiigations | ishied o partialiy isfied) a5 ot year end are as follows:
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
4.391.40 15,836.85
147714 3,239.28
30.479.54 3217892
42,348.07 53,295.15

i
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32 Service Concession Arrangements
Public to private service i gements are ded in aceordence with Appends "C"- Senvice Concassion Arrangements (Ind AS-115). Appendix "G is applicable it
a) The Granter controls or reguates which senvices the operator shiould provide with the mfrastructise, o whom it must provids them, and at what price; and
b) The Graster controls- through oumership, beneficial entiflement or othengise: any significart residual interest in the infrastrusture atthe end of the lem of the amangement.

Foth of the above condifions are met simuftaneausly, a financial asset is recognized to the extent that the operator has an uncondiional contractusl right to receive cash or aher finangial asset Trom or at the discretion of the Grantor for the

senace,

Thece financial assets are inflially recognized = cost. which is undersiood as the fair value of the service provided plus other direct costs directly atfributable to the operation. They are then stated 2 amorized cost at the end of ezch financial

year.

Ircen Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited (IDHHL) has entered into service concession armangement with National Highway Authority of India (MHAI) dated 19-06-2017. in terms of which NHA! (the: arantor) has authorized the company for
cevelopment, maintenance and management of National Highway No. 48 (Old NH-1) including the secticn from Km 260,00 1o Km 336.923 {approx. 78.923 Km) on Davanagere - Haveri Section of National Highway No. 43 (Old MH-4) in the

State of Kamataka by six-laning thereof on tesign, build, finance, operate and transfer basis . In ferms of the said agreement IDHHL has an obligat
kesp the project asssts in proper warking condition including &l projects assets whosa fves have expied. The Project is under Annuity pattern,

The Concession period shall be 15 years ing from the C ial i

date. At the end of the concessinn period, the assets will be transfierred back to National Highway Authority of india (WHAL).

In case of material breach in terms of agreement the NHA! and TrconDHHL have fight fo terminate the agreement if (hey are not able to cure the event of defaull in accerdance with such agreement

Company has recognized financial asset of Rs. 42769.01 Lakh under service concession agreemeant up to the period ended 315t March 2025 (31t March 2024 Rs 44,146 40 lakh) after taking info account the receivables dus from NHAI on
cempletion of milestone as per fenms of the contract. The company has recognised revenus of Rs 1600564 Lakh for the peniod ended on 31t March 2025 (for the period ended on 315t March 2024 Rs 1261342 Lakh} on construction of Road
under SCA and Operafion Revenue 33 per Ind AS - 115 related to "Revenue from Customers”, The company has recognized recefuabls under service concassion arrangement and shown under Other Financial Assets which it will receive as

per temms of the contract based on the completion of milestone, as on 31st March 2025, Company has recaived Provisional Comletion cartificate with effect from May 28, 2021,

Disclosure in terms of Appendix D of Ind AS 115:

of the project of Six laning of Davanagare Haveri section and to

In terms of the disclosure required in Appendix D in Ind AS -115 Revenue from Customers, as netified in the companies (Indian Accounting Standard) rules 2016, the amount considered in the financial statements up to the balance sheet date

are as follows -
[Particutars
For the year ended
31.03.2025
(Contract Revenue Recognized 10,749.02
Agaregate amount of cost incurred 10,638.10)
Amount of advance recsived fram Clent
A of by Client
Profit/{ Loss) recognisad during the period for exchange of conslruction service for a financial asset
Gross amount due from Client for Contract Works 45,576,
L o T TUE o Lollent for Loniract Waorks
33 Leases
a) Company as a Lessee
{7} The Company has no leasing ara which 2re non in nature. A ,,.mmduseassetsmﬁm@emmeshmheenrenoguisedbymemmpmr.
(i) The Company fias taken Office on lease with lease torms of 12 months or more | however lease can be terminated on one monih mﬁxhym&deﬂ-aa&areoumwappﬁesmemmmm‘mm
a:(ermﬁomforsmhleasesm'mnmawpem
Thelulmﬁngaemeanmrﬂsmmgnisedinsmtemdpmﬁtandm&
Particulars
For the year ended Far the year ended
31.03.2025 3.03.2024
|Expense refaiing to short-term leases (Refer Note 19) 330 331
b) Company as a Lessor
Company has no leasing awangement as a lessor,
34 Details of delayed payment to Micro and Small Enterprises as dafined under the MSHED Act, 2006
5.No. Particulars As at As at
315t March, 2025 st March, 2024
a) (The principal amount and the interest due therson TEMEining unpaid to any suppher as at the end of each accounting year:
- Principal amount due fo micro and small entemrises £ =
- Inferest due on above = =
E) Thearl‘mrtufimemslpaiﬁbymehllﬁrin!etmofSeclbn!SuflheMSMEDM%Oﬁdong with the mu:ﬁafmepaﬁmmmadetnmestmplwbemndthe
jappainted day during each accounting year -
c) | T amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond the agpointed day during the year)
without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006 5
o [ Thes Srmnsint af Srbnrent ] e cyerminiag WPGa GE G Laid UL GEGH ORLGUUTINTY Yl - -
) he amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeading years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the
small enterprise for the purpose of &5 a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act 2005

35 Gwporm&oiamﬁpunmﬁly

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company s required to spend, in svery financia Year, atleast two per cent of the average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial yearsin

actordance with its C5R Policy. The details of CSR expenses for the year are as under:
A, Amount required to be spent on CSR Acfivities

75

Asat Asat
Particulars 3t March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Gmusmmmqﬁredlobespedhrﬂw%pwdmmam 50.14 29.30
|Amaount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 50.14 29.30
B. Amount spent on CSR Activities
A5 atBist March, 2025 As at B1st March, 2024
ERvClixs Paidin Gash | Yelto paid Total Paid in Cash Yelto paid Total
On Construction/acquisition of any asset - - . - G
On purpo “than-abevn 5015 - SEE 29.32 - 29.32
|Total 7 T B 50.15 3 50.15 832 s 29,37 |
rs
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C. Break-up of the GSR.

under major heads is as under:

Asat
31st March, 2025

Asat
st March, 2024

¥ o
Conlribution to Prime Winister CARES Fend for fighting against COVID-19
Erarficating hunger, poverty & mainutrilion, promoting live heattheare &

2932

& making available safe drinking water

Sparts

Ensumg"em.i-armental suslainatility
Setting up homes and hostels for women and arphans, Seting up old age homes, day care centres and such other Faciiies for senior cifizens. -

Others finclucing Other Adimin Cost)

luding special education and employment entiancing vocaion skills especially among chidren, 3

Total

. Details rolated to unspent obligations:

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2025

A at
315t March, 2024

Unspent amount in relation to:
- Ongaing project (#)
- Other than ongaing project ()

#0ni Project:
lﬂpening Balance | S

Amount
required to be

Amount spent during the year Closing Balance

te CSR

hﬁlﬁ Company

From From Separate
Company’s bank| CSR U
Ale Alc

In Sep CSR
Unspent Alc

UnspentAlc | spent during

the year

With C

S

## Other than on

Opening Balance

ing project:
Amount deposited in Specified
Fund of Sch. VI within 6 months

Amount required to be spent

Amount spent during the
during the year :

Closing Balance
year* o

E. Details related

1o spent | unsp

{ Particulars

As at
31st March, 2025

As at
$1st March, 202¢ |

Opening Balance

Gross amount regquired fo be spent by the Company during the year (a5 per {a) aboue)
Amount spent by the Company during the year (as per (b) above)*

Shortalli(Excess) amount spent by the comp:

* There are no rel

50.14 2930
504 29.37
[0 [0.02)

party transaction in respect to CSR expendilre.

Asat
Hst March, 2025

Asat
31st March, 2024

etails of refated party transactions, e.g., contribution to 2 truist controlled by the company in
relation fo CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard (1)

Vitiere a provision is made with 1espect to a liabity incurred by entering into 3 contractual
ligation, the movements in the provision

£

il

Nl

36
There are no loans

37

U]

fi)
(i)

)

)

{viiy

i)

{ix})

]

Disclosure pursuant to section 186 of the Companies Act 2013:

QIU'EII, i im made and

given are made by the Company during the year.

Other Statufory Disclosures
The MCA vids nofification dated 24th March 2021 lias
amendmentin the financial statements and below disclosures are made in compliance of the said amendment -

ded Schedule Il to the Companies Act. 2013in respect of certain disclosures which are applicable from 1st Forl 2021. The Company has incomporated the changes as per the said

The Company has no transactions wilth companies siruck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Secfion 560 of Comgarnies Act, 1956 during the financial year ending 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024,

The Company has not traded or invested in Cryplo Currency or Virtual Cumency during the financial year ending 31st March 2025 and Hst March 2024,
The Campany do not have any Benami property 25 on 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for hotding any Benami property.

The Campany da not have any prior period ermors in financial year ending an 31st March 2025 and 315t barch 2024 to be disclosed separately i Staement of changes in equity.

‘The Company has no cases of any charges or satistantion which is yet to be registered with ROG beyond the statulory pericd in the financial vear nding 315t March 2095 and 212t Lam 2024
During the fmancial year 2024-25 and 202324, the Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any othar personis) or enttylies), induding forelgn ertiies {Imermediasies) with the understanding that the
Imermediary shalk:

{8) diectly ar indirectly lend or invest in other persons or nities identfied it any manner whaisoever by or on behalf of the: company {Uttmale Beneficiaries) or
(b} provide any guarantee, security or the e to or on behalf of the Ullimate Beneficianes

During the financial year 2024-25 and 2003-24, the Campany have not received any fund from any person(s) or enfityfies), including foreign entifies (Funding Party) with the undesstanding [whether recorded in writing or
atherwise) that the Company shall;

(8} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enfities identifizd in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ulimate Bensficiaries) or
{b) provide any quarantes, security or the bke on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries,

The Comparny has given loan & other advance 1o KMP of Rs 0.25 fakh and Rs 2iakh in the financial year ending 31st March, 2025 & 31t March 24 respectively . The Outstanding balance as at 315t March 2025 is Rs,
148 Lakh and-as at 31st March 2004 s Rs. 1.63 Lakh

The Company does not have any immovable properties s at 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024
‘nneCampaurhasnubeenmdaeuasmrﬁﬂdefambyanybankuﬁmndd'h“' or g or any

mmmfismtlaquireﬁlasummmmufcmulmmll'sebmkand* i of the

authority in the financial year 2024-25 and 200324,
filed by the pasny with bank and the books of accounts is not applicable.
The Campany does not have any transactions in financia year 2024-25 and 2023-24, where the company has not used the barmawings from banks and financial insfilulions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at
the balance sheet date
The Company have nat entrred into any scheme(s) of arangements during the year ending 31st March 2025 and period ending 31st March 2024

e Company has not entered in any transaction not resorded in the books of Accounts that fias been sumendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments undsr the Inome Tax Act, 1961 (suchas
sg?phummeyuwmmamﬂmﬂsionsowe Incoms Tax Act, 1861,

any does not have any Capital Work- in- Progress, |

Property, Intangible Assets and Int As.setsm‘rder[)welcpmerﬂasat31st!’u‘!mh.20256nd31stMarch,2024. e

)%;(E:Lhas nat received any grants and donations during the year ending 31st March 2025 and peniod ending 315t March 2024,
{ :
]
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3

3

o

(i) During the year 2024-25 and 2023-24. the company has not revalued any of its Propery, plant and squipment,
(v} The following ar ing ratios are disclpsed; -
SNe | Particulars Numerator Denaminator March 31st, 2025 March 31st, 2024 % change Reason for change more
i than 25%
al Cument ratio {In imes) Cumrent Assets Gurrent Liabilias 39 473 -16.28% NA
hj Debl-equity ratio (In tmes) Total Debt Shareholder's Equity 1.19 141 -15.60% NA
c) Debt sarvice coverage ratio (In fimes) Eamirgs for debt service =Nel | Dbt service = Interesi & 0.98 0.99 -1.01% NA
profit after taxes + Non-cash Lease Payments +
parating exy Principal Repay
d) Retumn on equily rafio Net Profits after taxes — Preference Average Shareholders 947 10.15 -9 66% NA
Dividend Equity X
=) Imventory urnover ratio {In times} Cost of goods sold Average Invertory NA ™A NA NA
f Trade recevables tumover rabo (In | Net cradit sales= Gross oredit sales-| Average Trade Receivable m 423 65.72% Due fo increase in revenue
times) sales retum in curmenf year and
decrease in trare receivable
g} Trade payablz fumover ratio (in times) | Net credit purchases = Gross credit Average Trade Payables 5.02 13.24 -62.08% Due fo increase in wark
purchases - purchase refum Expense and trade payable
hy Net capital tumover ratio {In times) Net Sales = Total sakes- sales retum Working capital = Cumrent 093 0.81 14.81% NA
assets - Cument fiabities
i het profit ratin Net Profit Net Sales = Total sales- 14.85 18.92 -Z21.51% NA
sales retum
)] Retum on capital employed Earmings before interast and taxes Capital Employed = 10.32 10.64 -301% MNA
Tangible Net Worth + Total
Debt + Deferred Tax
Liabilty
] Return on investment Income generated from Investments Investment NA M MNA MA
(Finance |ncome)
Disclosure as per Ind AS-1: Discl an of financial st
Certain rectassification has been made to the comparatve penod's financial statements fo enhance comparabilty with the current year's financial statements. As a result certain line items have been reclassified in the Balance Sheet, the
details of which are as under:
|Particulars Before Reclassification | Reclassification After Reclassification
[FY 2023-24) (FY 2023.24)
Current Financial Assets
-Lean to related parties- KMP 1.23 (1.23) =
- Intersst acerued but not due on Mitipurpose advance 0.13 (0.13) “
Non Current Financial Assets
- Loan to related parlies- KMP 123 123
- Interest acorued but not due con Mulipurose advance 0.13 0.13
Other Income:*
Interest Income on Financial Assets 5,744 50 (5,744 50)
Revenue from operations:*
llnteresl Income on Finangial Assets - 5,744.50 5744.50
"Based on the Expert Advisory Committee (EAC] of ICAl's opinion Dated 2nd Avgust. 2024, the Company has presented interest income from annuity payments under the Hybrid Annuity Made! (HAM) as "Other Operating R«mnue'_fol the
year ended 31st March 2025. As a result, "Revenue from Operations” has i d by Rs:5256.62 Lakh, with a corresponding decrease in "Other Income” for the year ended 31st March 2025. Accordingly, comparative figures L. Rs.
5744.50 Lakh have been reclassified to ensure comparabilty and consistancy with the curent year's presentation, in accordance with Ind AS 1. The reclassification has no impact on wofal profit and total comprehensive income in the
Statemeni of Profit and Loss.
Other disclosures
{i) In the epinion of the management, the value of assafs on realisation in the ordinary course of business, will not be less than the value 2t which these are stated in the Balance Sheet. :
(i) The Company has a system of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances from banks and other parties. So far as tradefother payables and loans and advances are concemed, the balance confimation lefters were sent
fo the parties. Balances of some of the Trade Receivables, Otfier Assets, Trade and Other Payables are subjsct fo confimmationsiecanciiations and consequential adjustment, if any. Reconciliztions are camied out on on-
going basis. However, management does not expect to have any material financial impact of such pending confirmations / reconciliations.
[iii} Figures rounded off to the neansst TUDEESS I Lakn.
consistency with the current period presaniations: These reclassifications have no effect on the reported results of operations. Also previous year figuras are shown under brackel {) to

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ircon Davanagere Haver Highway Limited
v—k - Jlu-y-' .

CA Shashi Gupta Sartany Mukheriee
Partne: Director

(DIN:- 10895834)

1

Place: New Delhi - 5 Nkas Aact Goutam Kumar Mishra hadeb Mandal
Dale:02.05.2025 " " Compeny Secretary Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF IRCON DAVANGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

The preparation of financial statements of IRCON Davangere Haveri Highway
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 in accordance with the financial reporting
framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India under Section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing
opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of the Act based on independent
audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of
the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Revised Audit Report dated
13 June 2025 which supersedes their earlier Audit Report dated 02 May 2025.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of IRCON Davangere Haveri Highway for
the year ended 31 March 2025 under Section 143(6) (a) of the Act. This supplementary
audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the
Statutory Auditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditor and Company
personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

In view of the revisions made in the Statutory Auditor's report, to give effect to
some of my audit observations raised during supplementary audit, | have no further
comments to offer upon or supplement to the Statutory Auditors’ report under Section
143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Place: New Delhi A
Datedy}.07.2025 19—

Teg Singh
Principal Director of Audit
Railway Commercial, New Delhi
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